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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving Iinformation with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material aspects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any staterment herein or this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of Perfect Optronics
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Perfect Optronics” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014, to all
shareholders.

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The year 2014 witnessed a slow growth in the world
economy. Economies including the Eurozone, Japan and
Russia saw major financial shocks. China’'s GDP growth
moderated to its weakest rate in recent years, expanding
7.4% last year from 7.7% in 2013. Likewise, the drop in
shipment volume for China brand mobile phones, an
industry closely related to the Group’s business, impacted
the financial performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014. Revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,299,154,000 during the vyear,
representing a decrease of approximately 22% compared
to 2013.

TFT-LCD panels, driver ICs, polarisers

Perfect Optronics is principally engaged in the trading of
electronics display components, namely thin film transistor
liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels, driver integrated
circuits (“ICs”) and polarisers, which are the major
components of display technology used in mobile phones.
Due to PRC telecommunication operators having changed
their strategies in relation to their subsidies to end users
for mobile phones purchases, market demand for certain
premium quality mobile phones, including those installed
with TFT-LCD panels sold by the Group, were negatively
impacted. Revenue of the Group’s Unprocessed Panel
Segment dropped from approximately HK$867 million in
2013 to approximately HK$331 million in 2014,
representing a decrease of approximately 62%.

However, the Group has strategically shifted its focus to
its Processed Panel Segment to alleviate the impact of the
market decline. Revenue of the Processed Panel Segment
increased by 31% in 2014 to approximately HK$690
million as compared with 2013. The Processed Panel
Segment became the largest segment of the Group and
accounted for more than half of the Group’s revenue in
2014.
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Wearable devices

The Group established two wholly-owned subsidiaries
namely Perfect Sky Technology Limited and Yuan Tian
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited in the second half
of 2014, focusing on product application development, which
aim to combine various displays (e.g. TFT-LCD, liquid crystal
on silicon (“LCoS”) with micro-projection technology (e.g.
pico-projectors, optical engine), and provide key
components, reference designs and technical support of
trending products such as wearable displays.

OUTLOOK

With extensive professional industry knowledge, well-
developed relationships with Taiwan suppliers and
thorough network connections with PRC customers, the
management is optimistic regarding the steady growth of
Perfect Optronics in 2015. The Group will also strive to
adapt promptly to the market dynamic with a view to
providing balanced product mixes.

Dedicated to boosting popularity of 4G services in the
PRC

The management believes that the recent downturn in the
smartphone market is a temporary one, and expects a
better outlook with regard to the increasing popularity of
4G services in the PRC. The Group will continue to seek
diversification of its product mix to achieve better selling
prices and profit margins. The management believes this
measure will equip the Group with diversified business so
as to sustain the growth of the Group.

Strategic cooperation and business expansion

The Group established two subsidiaries in 2014 to
engage in the wearable device market which is promising
and has received much attention in the industry. The two
subsidiaries engage in product application development
combining various displays (e.g. TFT-LCD, LCoS) with
micro-projection technology (e.g. pico-projectors, optical
engine), providing key components for trendy products
which have higher gross profit margins.
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The establishment of the two subsidiaries marks a
milestone in the Group’s business development, stepping
up to a comprehensive information technology company
with trading, product research and application
development. With extensive professional industry
knowledge and thorough relationships with suppliers and
customers, the Group is confident in new business
expansion going forward.

To expand the Group’s business, the Group entered into a
conditional agreement in January 2015 for the proposed
acquisition of the entire interest of Perfect Shiny
Technology Limited (“Perfect Shiny”). Perfect Shiny and its
subsidiaries primarily focus on the design, development,
production and sales of LCoS micro-projector optical
engines, and the design and development of applied
optics-related products. Some products related to these
technologies, such as virtual reality gaming headsets and
head-up display devices installed in motor vehicles, have
received much attention and support in capital markets
recently. The Group expects that these applied optics-
related products would become mainstream products
going forward.

In February 2015, the Group also established strategic
cooperation with Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”) for designing,
developing and launching smart glasses products in the
market. The technologies of voice search, linguistic
analysis and big data transmission offered by Mobvoi will
complement the developing wearable display products of
the Group. Furthermore, stronger competitiveness of the
Group in the PRC market will be achieved through
Mobvoi’s strong direct marketing and sales network in the
PRC.
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APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and
business partners for their unfailing support and trust in
the Group. At the same time, | would also like to extend
my appreciation to the outstanding management team and
staff members for their continuous contributions to the
Group’s business development with their ample
experience and diligence during the past year. The Group
is fully confident regarding its prospects and we deeply
believe our business will thrive in the near future, bringing
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
25 March 2015
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management discussion and analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the trading of display
components of electronics, namely thin film transistor
liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels, driver integrated
circuits (“ICs”) and polarisers, which are the major
components of display technology used for mobile
phones. The Group also processes some of the TFT-LCD
panels which it trades.

According to a recent report from China Academy of
Information and Communications Technology of the PRC,
China brand mobile phone shipment volume dropped by
23.3% in 2014, as compared to 2013. Revenue of the
Group saw a corresponding slowdown in 2014. During the
year of 2014, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,299,154,000, down 22% as compared
with 2013. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
approximately HK$32,991,000, decreased by 54% as
compared to 2013.

The Group’s performance was affected by the changing
marketing strategies of the telecommunication operators in
the PRC. During the year, the telecommunication
operators tended to cease their offers of service packages
which came with certain models of mobile phones, and
the sales of TFT-LCD panels of the Group which were
targeted at manufacturers of these models of mobile
phones were consequently affected. Revenue from
unprocessed TFT-LCD panels and other unprocessed
products (the “Unprocessed Panel Segment”) was
HK$330,646,000, decreased 62% as compared to the last
year. Such decrease was alleviated by the growth of
processed TFT-LCD panels (the “Processed Panel
Segment”). The revenue of Processed Panel Segment
reached HK$689,515,000, representing a significant
increase of 31% as compared to 2013. The Processed
Panal Segment accounted for 53% of the Group’s
revenue, constituting the largest segment of the Group in
2014.

For the remaining two business segments, namely, the
“Polariser Segment” and the “IC Segment”, there were
keen market competitions during the year. The Group
recorded a revenue of HK$29,377,000 from Polariser
Segment in 2014, decreased by 23% as compared to the
full year of 2013. Benefited from the introduction of new
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and advanced ICs to the market, the Group grasped
market share in these ICs and resulted a 5% increase in
revenue of IC Segment to HK$249,616,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014,

During the year, the Company offered 330,000,000 shares
for subscription by way of placing (the “Placing”). It raised
net proceeds of approximately HK$76 million and became
successfully listed on the GEM on 7 February 2014 (the
“Listing Date”). The net proceeds from the listing will
enhance the competitiveness of the Group and contribute
a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable business
expansion.

PROSPECTS

The Group established two wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely, Perfect Sky Technology Limited and Yuan Tian
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited, to expand its
business and enhance the existing product mix. These
two subsidiaries are planned to engage in the product
application development combining various display with
micro-projection technology, in order to provide key
components, reference designs and technical support for
trendy products such as wearable displays in the future.
With its extensive professional industry knowledge, well-
developed relationships with Taiwan suppliers and
thorough network connections with the PRC customers,
the Group believes that the new business will have a
significant development in the future.

To step into virtual reality gaming headsets and
automobile head-up display devices market, the Group
entered into a conditional agreement to acquire the entire
interest of Perfect Shiny Technology Limited (“Perfect
Shiny”) in January 2015. Perfect Shiny and its subsidiaries
primarily focus on the design, development, production
and sales of liquid crystal on silicon (“‘LC0oS”) micro-
projector optical engines, and the design and
development of applied optics-related products. Since
relatively few companies in the industry can master the
design and production of key optical components, the
proposed acquisition is part of the Company’s strategies
to achieve a leading position in the relevant market.
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In order to bring out the full complimentary advantages,
the Group had subscribed for certain preferred shares of
Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”), which represent approximately
2.5% of the share capital (on a fully diluted and as-
converted basis) of Mobvoi in January 2015. The Group
had also established strategic cooperation with Mobvoi for
designing, developing and launching smart glasses
products in the market in February 2015. The
technologies of voice search, linguistic analysis and big
data transmission offered by Mobvoi will be a good
complement to the developing wearable display products
of the Group. With the well-established direct marketing
and strong sales network in the PRC market of Mobvoi,
the overall competitiveness of the Group will be greatly
enhanced and consolidated by such cooperation.

Looking forward, although affected by the slowdown of
the smartphone market as well as the telecommunication
operators’ strategies in the PRC, the Group believes that
these downturns are temporary. As the 4G services in
PRC is getting popular, a promising growth of smartphone
shipment in China is expected. The Group will continue to
develop and further enhance its product mix, improve
profit margin for each segment, as well as expand
business in new trendy product markets. The
management believes that with the above strategies, the
Group can attain greater financial returns for the
shareholders of the Company.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s financial information and its notes, which
are included in this report.

REVENUE

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December
2014 was approximately HK$1,299,154,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 22% as compared to
approximately HK$1,669,556,000 in 2013. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s four product
segments, (1) Unprocessed Panel Segment reported a
revenue of HK$330,646,000 (2013: HK$867,237,000); (2)
Processed Panel Segment recorded a revenue of
HK$689,515,000 (2013: HK$525,338,000); (3) IC Segment
recorded a revenue of HK$249,616,000 (2013:
HK$238,766,000); and (4) Polariser Segment reported a
revenue of HK$29,377,000 (2013: HK$38,215,000). The
decrease in revenue during the year as compared with
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2013 was mainly attributed to the significant 62% decline
in revenue of the Unprocessed Panel Segment affected by
the changing marketing strategies of the
telecommunication operators in the PRC as mentioned in
the section headed “Business review” above. The
increases in revenue from the Processed Panel Segment
and IC Segment have moderated the overall decrease of
the Group’s revenue.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales during the year primarily consisted of
purchase costs, processing and subcontracting charges,
scrap loss, provision for obsolete inventories,
transportation charges and other direct costs. The
Group’s cost of sales decreased by 21% from
approximately HK$1,523,366,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$1,207,137,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014, which was mainly due to
the decrease in purchase costs associated with the
decrease in sales revenue.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT
MARGIN

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
gross profit amount decreased by 37% to approximately
HK$92,017,000 as compared with the year ended 31
December 2013. The drop in revenue of the Group in
2014 led to the decrease in gross profit amount. The
Group’s gross profit margin decreased from 8.8% in 2013
to 71% in 2014. The decrease in overall gross profit
margin was mainly attributable to the decrease in gross
profit margins of both the Unprocessed Panel Segment
and Processed Panel Segment. Since there was a drop in
demand of the Group’s panels during the vyear, the
Group’s gross profit margins of these two segments were
affected.

OTHER LOSSES, NET

Other losses, net amounted to approximately
HK$1,410,000 during the year (2013: HK$716,000). The
balance mainly comprised of the unrealised exchange
losses on the Group’s Renminbi bank deposits arising
from the depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong
dollars during the year.
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DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses increased
from approximately HK$14,713,000 in 2013 to
approximately HK$14,783,000 in 2014, mainly due to the
increase in additional staff costs and operating expenses
incurred by a PRC subsidiary, which was established in
April 2013.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$33,775,000, representing an
approximately 17% decrease as compared with 2013 of
approximately HK$40,524,000. Non-recurring expenses in
relation to the listing of the Company included in the
general and administrative expenses during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,084,000 (2013:
HK$13,426,000). Excluding the effect of these non-
recurring expenses, the Group’s general and
administrative expenses for the vyear increased by
approximately HK$5,593,000, representing an
approximately 21% increase over 2013. Such increase in
general and administrative expenses was mainly due to
the increase in staff costs attributable to the increase in
headcount; and the increase in various professional fees
after the listing of the Company.

FINANCE INCOME

Finance income represented bank interest income
received during the year. Interest income earned from the
Group’s additional Renminbi bank deposits placed during
the year led to the increase in bank interest income.

FINANCE COSTS

During the year, finance costs of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,550,000 (2013: HK$2,652,000), which
was comparable with 2013.

THEHEERX

AEEMNSHEEBERIA T — =4
14,713,000 7T 18 &= — T — /Y 4 £914,783,000/%8
T EERR—BER-E—=FMAKHFEH
B AR EHEBINE T RACLEFIIEM -

TTHF X

AEEHE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HILFED
1T B 2 49533,775,00008 70 BT —=FH)
#340,524,000/8 7T * WA 8I17% - BEARRQF L
MZIEEERASTGIARNFEETHRAI)NA
1,084,000/ 7T (ZZ — =4 : 13,426,000 JT) °
MMBRIECEMERINTE AEEFAMNIT
B B9 sk 3 0 #95,593,00008 7T » B —F — = 4F i
M#21% - THHZMEREIZEEZHRETA
HFENSEIRANEARARB LHESER
EBERIEMATE -

B 35 WA

MBEBWARKRFRARBRZBITHNEEA - FR
AEBEMARERITERAREB A BHA
BERITAMBWALED -

MBEH

FR - AEERNPHEHY2,550000E T (==
— =% :2,652,00087) BT —=FH -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense of the Group during the vyear
primarily represents income tax incurred in Hong Kong.
Due to the decrease in profit of the Group, income tax
expense decreased from approximately HK$16,541,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately
HK$7,079,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014,

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year decreased by 54% from
approximately HK$71,133,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$32,991,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in sales amount from
approximately HK$1,669,556,000 in 2013 to approximately
HK$1,299,154,000 in 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group’s
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and
bank borrowings. The Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$103,314,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$62,869,000).

FrEHEH

REBRFANMGHEATZANEBELE
MG ARAEE AR  FIEHRE
BHEBEE-_Z—=%+_A=1+—BILFEEH
16,541,000 TR A EH#HE-_ZE—NF+-A=
+—HB IEFE 47,079,000 It °

FERHE

AEBZFEMNBRBEE_TE—=F+=-"A=+
— B IEFE 471,133,000 TR D 54% EFH = —
T—ME+ ==+ —HILFE 432,991,000
T FTEZHREARBEESEBR_ZT =4
1,669,556,000/%8 7t i 2 &2 = T — U F 4
1,299,154,0005 7T °

RBESRUHBKER

REENESTEAERNEEES  kBAX
SEZERHENZNERLERE®ES -
AEEBXFEMNESRFRAALBEEENT SR
RITEF - AEBR-_ZE—NFE+-_A=1+—H
MR RIRESEEMH103,314,0008 T (ZF —
=4 :62,869,000/8 7T) °

31 December

2013
—E-=F
+=ZA=+—H
HK$'000
T T

Total bank deposits, bank balances and WITHFH - RITEHRR
cash Re 5 125,544 97,907

Restricted bank deposits included in current 5% & #1158 1717 2 (A

assets MENE EE) (22,230) (35,038)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEYD 103,314 62,869
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits are denominated
in the following currencies:

AEENREIRSFZEVMULZIRBBTHE
RHBREEDATIEEE:

31 December

31 December

2014 2013

—E-WF —F-=F

e c= 5 +-A=+—H

HK$°’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

United States dollars ETT 79,505 89,112
Renminbi AR 38,204 6,408
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,640 2,387
New Taiwan dollars Har 1,195 —
125,544 97,907

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total bank
borrowings comprised bank loans and bank advances for
factored receivables of approximately HK$15,600,000
(2013: HK$17,280,000) and HK$31,541,000 (2013:
HK$58,251,000) respectively. The scheduled repayment
date of the Group’s bank borrowings, as set out in the
loan agreements and without considering the effect of any
repayment on demand clauses were as follows:

R-Z—MF+-—A=+—8 AEENBIRT
ERBERITERRREERKNBEITERS
B114915,600,0007% 7t (= Z — =4 : 17,280,000/
70) 131,541,000/ 7T (—Z —=4F : 58,251,000/
) BERME S BT EEBIEEREEGRRY
EMNAEERITEROTEEEARBT:

31 December

31 December

2014 2013

—E-IF =%

TZA=1+—H Iayeci=hkal=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 year 1 A 47,141 65,727
Between 1 and 2 years 12290 R = 5,204
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F N = 4,600
47141 75,531
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBERITERNOKREESATIIEBFE:

31 December
2013

—=_=

+ZA=+—H
HK$'000
THET

Hong Kong dollars AT
United States dollars ETT

- 17,280
47,141 58,251

47,141 75,5631

The Group’s bank loan as at 31 December 2014 was a
fixed interest rate loan (2013: floating interest rate loans).
Bank advances for factored receivables as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 were subject to
fixed interest rates. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s
unutilised banking facilities restricted for trade finance
purposes amounted to approximately HK$164.0 million
(2013: HK$129.8 million).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio was
19.4% (2013: 54.4%), which is calculated based on the
Group’s total interest-bearing debt of approximately
HK$47,141,000 (2013: HK$75,531,000) and the Group’s
total equity of approximately HK$242,799,000 (2013:
HK$138,735,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on GEM
on 7 February 2014. There has been no change in the
capital structure of the Group since the Listing Date and
up to 31 December 2014. The capital of the Company
only comprises ordinary shares.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year.

The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged its
bank deposits of approximately HK$22,230,000 (2013:
HK$35,038,000) to certain banks in Hong Kong to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the Group’s
exposure to exchange rate risk is limited. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Board will continuously monitor the related
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2013: Nil).

B R

AEECHEEBRRRRNBEMBERSE -
AMREFHEASUREREZADESMMR

AEER2EZEHBANPBARR  BELE R
HR=MmGEETEE  BRENBEEE
R - AEBEEHRETERPETEEN
B-REERDESRR EEBESETRER
AEENRBESKAARTERARERITR
WEAZEERE  UEEBEREENEMNK -

HAREE

RZZE—NMF+-A=+—H AEEALEEX
SRBE(CTE—=F )

EHEE

RZBE—NF+_A=+—H A£BEREHE
BT HRTEAERITE 422,230,000/ 7T (=
T — =% :35,038,000/8 ) NS IR FAREE K
IRITRLE o

5 BE B

MRARBARNSEBRS BERABHE
EUETL  BLRARBIHE  HAEEEY
MERERAR o BAT 7% B MmN H

B - AT EFERBRTEEEEINERR -
YTHREFERZERBEHERNIIERR -

B A

R-ZE-—MF+-A=1T—"H AEELEEM
BERERAL(ZT—=F:8)-
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.5 cent (2013: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 15 May 2015.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in subsidiaries, as at 31
December 2014, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interest in any other company (2013:
Nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 24
January 2014 (the “Prospectus”) and the significant events
of the Group after 31 December 2014 as set out in note
31 to the financial statements, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets as
at 31 December 2014.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did
not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies (2013: Nil).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various
fringe benefits to employees including medical benefits,
social insurance, provident funds, bonuses and a share
option scheme.

As at 31 December 2014, the employee headcount of the
Group was 131 (2013: 60) and the total staff costs,
including directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$27,855,000 (2013: HK$19,365,000).
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WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

A comparison of the Group’s business plan as set out in
the Prospectus with actual business progress for the
period from 14 January 2014 (being the Latest Practicable
Date as defined in the Prospectus) to 31 December 2014
(the “Review Period”) is set out below. Capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as those

ARFEHEEBEBER 2R

HRHEREREEASER S —UF—AF
WA BBRERARAET 2 &REBERATARE
—E-NF+-_A=+—BHBA(EEHEDD
EBTIHERESER 2RI OT - B
NESEMEN AREFAZAZEBRE
BAATEEHMHARRE -

defined in the Prospectus unless the content requires

otherwise.

Business objectives for the Review Period

EEBENELER

Actual business progress for the Review Period

EEMENERERER

(@) Establishment or acquisition of panel processing plants in the PRC to expand our business vertically

RABERYIFWBEBERMIBAEERR XK

Perform technology and capacity forecast
and planning

HETT R % 2 e FRORI K AR &

Perform due diligence studies on target
panel processing plant(s) or rules and
compliance of operating panel processing
plant(s) in the PRC
HEARERMIMEETRBEEXFASE
PR AL ER N THE KRR RERBR
|dentify potential equipment supplier and
carrying out evaluation

) &8 1E 3R 1 L e B K AT 1

Confirm expansion plan for cutting
processing plant

R E I TR B 4 R Et A
Commence acquisition or establishment of
cutting processing plant

5 R W RS K SV B N TR B
Purchase equipment (if establish cutting
processing plant)
BERE K E LN IEE)

Recruit staff

HEET

Technology and capacity forecast and planning had
been performed

B 1T RO 2 2 A TR ORI K R &l

A potential panel processing plant had been
identified and related due diligence work had
commenced

EHT—MEEEANTHERMNIESE - X EFEH
RBELTIIE

The Group was identifying a potential equipment
supplier

AEEBFEYEEBEERERERN

The Group had decided to expand through
acquisition of panel processing plant
AEBEREFEBKEERINIKEERE
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Business objectives for the Review Period

EEMENXEER

Actual business progress for the Review Period

EESNENEREEER

(b) Expansion of our sales support team in the PRC to provide high quality services to our customers

BEATHEEZEER AEFRUEEBERE
° Recruit staff
HBEST
° Continue to recruit staff if necessary
BEREETI(WER)

° Arrange training to staff

ZHE 8 TE
° Organise marketing activities

BRMBERLD

The Group had recruited additional sales and
engineering staff to strengthen its sales support
team in the PRC
AEECEFHNMEERTEABARIEENPEH
B iH & R B

Relevant training activities had been provided to new
and existing staff
ERMABIREETRHEMBAEINES

The Group had continuously organised various
marketing activities to promote sales and strengthen
its market position
AEEEHEABZETSHETS AME £HEL
5% E 735 3 i

(¢) Expansion of our product portfolio to strengthen our product offerings

CEEmAS MEEmHE

o Explore new products and suppliers

PR Em R LR

° Evaluate new products and perform due
diligence on new supplier if necessary
AEHERMMENHERETERES
(R E)
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The Group had introduced new products, such as
medium sized display products for automotives and
tablets; and new suppliers in the PRC
AEBEESIAFER WARERFREANTEE
EE fm N B ) T A RS

Due diligence work on new suppliers had been
performed

EHHMEERETERERD
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USE OF PROCEEDS FrEREAR

The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately B2 & FT1S 50 IE F 88 4976,000,000/8 7T ° 72 [l B8 Hf
HK$76 million. During the Review Period, the net [ ' REMBREBEFECHARTIEE:
proceeds from the Placing had been applied as follows:

Planned use of
proceeds as

stated in the Actual use of
Prospectus proceeds during
during the the Review
Review Period Period
BREREI M

BREREEY RERERERE
BHsrEAZ HEANERAR

HK$’million HK$’million
BEEAR BEEAR
Establishment or acquisition of panel R B R sk R R
processing plants in the PRC to expand  IILIE @ WEHERE
our business vertically Ei 11 -
Repayment of bank loans BEBIRITER 17 17
Expansion of our sales support team in the & AR EHE X EE B
PRC to provide high quality services to MEFREEERY
our customers 4 4
Expansion of our product portfolio to BEEMMES  IEEM®
strengthen our product offerings e 2 2
General working capital —REEES 7 7
4 30
Notes: et -

The business objectives as stated in the Prospectus were based on the R ERMMMNEBEEZNERNAEEEREBRERFY
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group at the — RRFRIEHAREMET > MAGRBNRETSEREE
time of preparing the Prospectus. The uses of proceeds were applied in FER -

accordance with the actual development of the market:

1. The Group had identified a potential panel processing plant and 1. AEBEEYE—REENTHEIRINIEEBEEE
related due diligence work and negotiations with the target plant BESTIELEBERENERETET  NALEE
were in progress. During the financial due diligence process ETERBREEHE FTEEZRMERZEEBENRSG
conducted by the Group, additional time is required in obtaining WIEER - ERRI A EMATBRIETDRIEE -

for financial information from such target plant. Therefore,
proceeds applied in this area were less than expected.

2. The remaining net proceeds as at 31 December 2014 had been 2. RZZE—NF+_A=+—ANRTHBRBFEE
placed on interest-bearing deposits in banks in Hong Kong. BGABBRITETEGTR -
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PREIBHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, save as
set out below, the Company has adopted the principles
and the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the period (the “Reporting Period”) from 7
February 2014, the date of listing of shares of the
Company on GEM (the “Listing Date”), to 31 December
2014, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code, except the deviation as
disclosed under the section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the Reporting
Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board at the
date of this annual report was as follows:

Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman)
BREELEE(FE)

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai
BRERE

Mr. Liu Ka Wing

BREREYE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUIHITEE

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John
ERBEE

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

mEBREE

Mr. Li Shui Yan

Fin Bt

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, the Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, has been appointed as
an executive Director of the Company with effect from 26
March 2015.

The biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 39 to
43 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

EEg
EEBHAR

HEAFHAHIL ARAREZTSTH=LNITE
ER=RBEIGFRITEFTAN - RAFHRAY -
E=Egm@ERET:

(appointed on 20 January 2014)
(RZE—NEF—-—A=Z+HEZE)
(appointed on 20 January 2014)
(RZZE—NEFE—-—A-Z+HEZE)
(appointed on 20 January 2014)
(RZE—NE—-—A-+HEZE)

ARBIZRAIMER MBRAEHRREER
E-RF=A-+NHREZERARANITE
$ o

EREZENARASAEEENEEFBHR
RERFIOEFAZEN - LARB R > &
EeNEBEZHEMEEMME XK KiKkHHE
B RLAABEE -
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FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring the
performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Company’s
operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure
effective performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
CA1.2 of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis by the
Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «

EEEREEEBE

EXEQZRERBFTARAREMB AR ZE

BEET R ATV ARREBRRAE EESR
EEEZRANRBECEEAR Eﬁftﬁzf»@%kz

BET EEERERTHESFSHFIZR
Katdl REBRARR ZEFRRAE
NHERESEZBEABIHT -

REBEARERTATAEXFECI2MF - EEE
BANEFEBREBRHEENEA -

ESkEARBENEE

ARAREHREARR EHMIHEET RS RER

BRENEMAERTS REFRSABESR

HHENEERR RBRESETFHES
/\/\ﬁ—JL /AO

EEREH

EFAHRSGRUARRAIBEEEZMAFTETEAD
HEFEAARLEFEE MEEEE SR
CHAAMCBRESFSERIEFERECERZ
/}'&}TE"



BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

corporate governance report £ ¥ & 38 i 5

The Board met four times during the Reporting Period. Its
composition and the attendance of individual Directors at

these board meetings were as follows:

ExEER(#)

EFEeXNREHERTAREHE - HRE AR

EEHFEFEERZIBRAOT

Number of
Name attendance
H"E R #
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman) B EBmEE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai BREEE 4/4
Mr. Liu Ka Wing Bttt 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHPITEE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John EERLEE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEEBLEE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan A LE 4/4

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing on the Listing Date. Either party has
the right to give not less than three months’ written notice

to terminate the respective service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on the Listing

Date.

ZERERES
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by the shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
article 112 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director but the
number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not 3 or
a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 vyears. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai
and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Cheng Wai Tak,
and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Due to pursuit of his own
personal development, Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai does not
offer himself for re-election and shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. He will remain as a
consultant of the Group.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

In addition, Mr. Tse Ka Wing was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. In
accordance with the article 112 of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Tse Ka Wing will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the GEM Listing Rules for the Reporting Period.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

ZERERESE(A)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

Under the current management structure of the Company,
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”) is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. With Mr. Cheng’s extensive
experience in the industry, the Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person would provide the Company with strong
and consistent leadership, allow for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and would be beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Group.

Although Mr. Cheng performs both the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is
clearly established. In general, the Chairman is responsible
for supervising the functions and performance of the
Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the management of the business of the Group. The two
roles are performed by Mr. Cheng distinctly. The Board
also considers that the current management structure
does not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the
Board and the effective functions of the independent non-
executive Directors. However, it is the long-term objective
of the Company to have these two roles performed by
separate individuals when suitable candidates are
identified.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of

reference, three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, who has the
appropriate accounting and financial related management
expertise and serves as the chairman of the audit
committee, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary duties of the audit committee are (but
without limitation) to assist the Board in providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of our Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and risk

EREES

ARBIER-_F-HUF-—A-FTHRIEZREZE
g ,\Eﬁﬁrﬂzfﬂ%?ﬂﬁ“é %R L AR AIS5.28
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G RARAMBEHRBE  NEEER

E.IE/%.JLE@ﬁxﬂz&l‘?ﬁhfﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ
EEZBENRETESFERR EMBBMER

management system, to oversee the audit process and to  &fE °
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.
The audit committee held four meetings during the BZZECNW|MESHBERITUATHE  -HEKE
Reporting Period. Its composition and attendance of RERKENRZEEXRZESHZLFERN
individual members at these audit committee meetings are I :
as follows:

Number of
Members of the audit committee attendance
ERZEEENRE HE X
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John HEERLE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu mEBEE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan Fin B L4 4/4

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee
reviewed the Company’s annual financial statements,
interim and quarterly reports; discussed the internal
control of the Group; met with the independent external
auditors and reviewed reports from the independent
external auditors regarding their audit on annual financial
statements.

RBEHE BERZEEENARBZFEY
BHRE  PHEFERS A RAEEZARE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1 of the CG Code. The
remuneration committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, who serves as the
chairman of the remuneration committee, Mr. Cheng Wai
Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; (iiij reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, one remuneration committee
meeting was held for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The remuneration committee satisfied the
existing arrangement and there was no recommendation
to the Board on change of such policy and structure. All
the members of the remuneration committee, including Mr.
Wong Chi Chiu, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John, had attended that meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to
an annual adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the
remuneration committee and be determined at the
discretion of the Board. The Company’s policy concerning
the remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload and the
time devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted
incentive bonus schemes and continues to maintain these
schemes, seeking to align the financial well-being of the
Group with that of the employees, and to retain the
Directors and staff of high caliber.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION

Senior management’s remuneration of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014 falls within the
following band:
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BE-_T-OF+_A=t—HLFE r&H
EREEENFMENATEE :

Number of
individuals

AE

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision A.5 of the CG Code. The
nomination committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, who serves as the
chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary function of the nomination committee
includes making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing of the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

During the Reporting Period, one nomination committee
meeting was held for, inter alia, reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and board diversity
policy as well as discussing matters regarding the
retirement and re-election of Directors and succession
planning for directors and assesses the independence of
independent non-executive directors. All the members of
the nomination committee, including Mr. Cheng Wai Tak,
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan, had
attended that meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Diversity Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a) develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Company and its subsidiaries; (c)
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any
other topics, as authorised by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group
and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the Reporting Period, the Company provided
training materials for all the Directors to keep them
abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory and
corporate governance. The Company has received the
records of training from all Directors.

The Group, together with its compliance adviser and legal
advisers, continuously update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s
report attached to the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 in this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration
paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided is set out below:

B B B &

HE_ZT-—WFETA=+—HLEFE  ®HAR
HHBEA RIEFFRBE KB T 2 K BK
BEAMEBAOMSRINMT

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
P 42 44 AR 7% e B
HK$°000

FERT

Audit services EBit R 1,480
Non-audit services IEEFT R 73
Total BEt 1,553

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions and has considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of the
Company accounting and financial reporting function for
the Reporting Period.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to provide clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
(Continueqd)

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company's
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions of the shareholders at the general
meeting. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
(Continueqd)

2014 General meeting

At the annual general meeting held in 2014, separate
resolution was proposed by the chairman in respect of
each separate issue, including re-election of directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the GEM
Listing Rules. The respective chairman of the Board, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee has attended the annual general meeting held
in 2014 to ensure effective communication with
shareholders. The attendance record of the Directors at
the general meeting held in 2014 is set out below:

BERERRREENEE(A

—E-NFERRAE

R-E-NFRETZBERBEFASL  TREAS
BYFER BREZEFE RE2BFBURIR
WRERTARR - ARARBEAIER EHR
AREZHAAEMRZER BEFE  FRZ
Eg FHMEZESMREEZEERIFELER
“E-NERTZRRBEAS  BARERR
EHBERBERE EFN_T—WFRRIT2ZRR
REZHFERIFHNT -

General meeting

Name attended/held
HE R
®£ BRERKXE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) B BB E (EERTRAER) 11
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai ERELEE 11
Mr. Liu Ka Wing Bafts 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John HsERBEE /1
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu EEBEE 1/1
Mr. Li Shui Yan Fin Bt Al
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposal at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is
posted on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the Chief Executive Officer.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is an
employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there is no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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biographical details of directors and senior management
ESERSHEERRBAGH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 45, was appointed as director
of the Company on 13 June 2013. He is the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the
Company. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng is also a founder
of the Group. He has been in the business of trading
TFT-LCD components for over 11 years and has
established close relationships with various suppliers. He
is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall strategic
planning and development, and management of the
Group’s business. He obtained his bachelor of science in
combined sciences in mathematical science degree from
The Hong Kong Baptist College in December 1993. Prior
to founding the Group, Mr. Cheng worked for S.A.S.
Electronic Co. Ltd. from March 1994 to April 1999. His
last position with S.A.S. Electronic Co. Ltd. was assistant
sales manager. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is
also a director of all of the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, the British Virgin Islands,
Samoa and Taiwan.

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai, aged 43, joined the Group in
2005 and was appointed as an Executive Director on 18
June 2013. He obtained his bachelor of engineering in
electronic engineering degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1996. Mr. Cheng has
about 23 years of experience in the field of electronic
engineering. He served as a technician in UDC Research
Ltd. in October 1990 until December 1995. Then, he
joined Le Sonic Systems Ltd. from July 1996 until June
1997 as product sales engineer. From June 1997 to
January 2004, he was the assistant product planning &
marketing manager of Sino Wealth Microelectronics Corp.
Ltd.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive
Director on 18 June 2013. He joined the Group in
November 2008. Mr. Liu obtained a diploma in
accountancy from Sha Tin Technical Institute of Vocational
Training Council in August 1993 and was awarded
certificate stage examinations in June 1996 by the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Liu
has about 21 years of experience in accounting. He
worked with T.K. Tong & Co. from the period of
November 1993 to April 1997. Thereafter he worked as an
assistant accountant in International Airline Passengers
Association (Far East) Ltd. from October 1997 until May
2005. In March 20086, he joined Priority Pass (A.P.) Limited
and served as an accountant responsible for general
accounting functions and maintaining full sets of books
until November 2008.

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 39, joined the Group on 20 May
2013 and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. Mr.
Tse graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in December 1997 with a bachelor of business
administration degree. He has been an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since April and January 2001 respectively.
Mr. Tse is a professional accountant with over 17 years of
experience in accounting. He first joined Ernst & Young in
September 1997 and his last position was senior manager
of the assurance department when he left in November
2010. From December 2010 to May 2013, he was the
chief financial officer of a private company during which
he was responsible for mergers and acquisitions activities
of its group companies, as well as overseeing its group’s
financial management, financial reporting and corporate
secretarial functions. In January 2015, Mr. Tse was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Jicheng Umbrella Holdings Limited (stock code: 1027), a
company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 48, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 20 January
2014 and is responsible for providing independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of
Melbourne, Australia with a degree of bachelor of
commerce in January 1992. He was a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
(“CPA Australia”) in February 1992 and was admitted as
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) in April 1997. He also obtained
the Certificate of Completion for Senior Management of
Listed Companies (ETTARISREEABEIEEE)
issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November
2011. Mr. Wong has more than 21 years of experience in
auditing and corporate finance work. He had previously
served at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Arthur Anderson & Co.
SC., Ernst & Young, Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance
Limited, Vantage Consulting Group and TMF Group
(China). Mr. Wong also holds various directorships in Hong
Kong listed companies. He has been an independent
non-executive director of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group
Limited (stock code: 2341) since February 2004; Golden
Resources Development International Limited (stock code:
677) since September 2004; Beijing North Star Company
Limited (stock code: 588) since May 2009; and Biosino
Bio-Technology and Science Incorporation (stock code:
8247) since May 2011. Mr. Wong has also been an
independent director of companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, including Western Securities Co. Ltd.
(Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002673) since December
2007 and Yang Guang Co. Ltd (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 000608) since November 2008. He also held
directorships in foreign listed companies. Mr. Wong was
an independent director of CDW Holding Limited (Main
Board of Singapore Exchange Limited: D38), a company
listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Limited,
from August 2004 to December 2011; and General Steel
Holdings Inc. (New York Stock Exchange, Inc.. GSI), a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc.,
from August 2005 to July 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 44, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is also the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong obtained a degree
of bachelor of engineering in electrical engineering from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1993.
He further received his master of science in engineering
(building services engineering) degree from The University
of Hong Kong in December 2004. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
about 23 years of experience in the engineering industry.
From June 1993 to February 1995, he worked with
Parsons Brinckerhoff (Asia) Ltd. (“Parsons”) and his last
position was an engineer. He then joined FTB Tooling &
Engineering Ltd, a subsidiary of FTB Packaging Limited,
as an electrical engineer in February 1995 until July 1996.
Thereafter, he worked with Parsons until August 2009 and
his last position in Parsons was senior associate. After his
tenure with Parsons, he joined Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited in August 2009 and his last position
was senior building services manager (China) when he left
in October 2012. Currently, he has been the manager
under Hang Lung (Administration) Limited, a subsidiary of
Hang Lung Group, since January 2013.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Li Shui Yan, aged 45, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li obtained a degree of bachelor of
business administration from National Chengchi University
in Taiwan in June 1994. Mr. Li has more than 18 years of
experience in corporate finance. He was a dealer’s
representative and an investment representative from
October 1995 to May 2001 and an investment advisor
from May 2001 to March 2003 under the Securities
Ordinance. From June 1995 to March 2001, he worked
with TIS Taiwan International Securities (HK) Limited and
his last position was senior manager. He was also the
managing director and responsible officer of Cinda
International Capital Limited (transferred to Cinda (BVI)
Limited in December 2001) from March 2001 to July 2011.
Currently, he has been the managing director and
responsible officer of Messis Capital Limited since
October 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tse Ka Wing is the Company Secretary and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He was appointed as
an Executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. For
details of his biography, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Executive Directors” of this section.

BIYFHITES(A)

FEHBEE 455 R-T—NF-A-+HE
ZERBIUFNTES AARHABART
HERRE - RIR - BRI TRKENIB LA -
BRARREZZEENREZRZEGNKE - F
FER—NNOFRARSERZBIa NS R

REXERELEN -FEERNCERENE
BHBIBFRR -HEBEHFGEIET KRN

NAFT+AZEZTET—FHAMARIARERK
BEREK WH-ZTTE—FRAE-TT=F=
RAEAEREER -B—NWNWAFAAZZTZT—
F=RA HIERESSEEFHFEBARD
B REBUASHAKE - B4 FEA-_ZTZT
—FZRAET——FLACBEEERHRE
ERAFT(ZZEZE—F+ = AE £Cinda (BY)
Limted) WEFBLERBEA Bl - FEZ
E-——FtABRAKERMEERARELES
BEBERBEA

EREEE

WREEERARR 2R Twiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ°
BR-ZZB-—RAF=A -+ XAREZER/ERD
ﬂﬁ%%°ﬁ%ﬁ2%ﬁﬁ%'%%ﬁ$%@t
TEE R

cEBXNXEBMRNANT 2014 Fi o

43



report of the directors
EFBHRSE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in
preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company
(the “Listing”) on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company
of the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 January 2014
(the “Prospectus”). The Company’s shares were listed on
GEM on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 10(a) to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.5
cent (2013: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or about 5 June 2015 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 15 May
2015. Based on 1,320,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company in issue as of the date of this report, the total
dividend will amount to approximately HK$6,600,000.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 12 to the
financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately HK$91,130,000 (2013:
HK$22,364,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group, as extracted from the Prospectus
and the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2014, is set out on page 136 of the annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder
passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption Date”). The
following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee
or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;

(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vi) any supplier, customer, service provider,
business or joint venture partner, contractor, of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,

(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

Duration
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(d)

Timing for exercising option

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject to
such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of option
offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

Subscription Price

The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer, which must be a business day;

(i) a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(9)

Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (being 132,000,000 Shares).
The Company may renew this limit at any time,
subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a
circular and in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules provided that the number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share
option schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 10% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h)  Maximum entitlement of Shares of each Participant
(Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

BITEF

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman)
BEELEE(FE)

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai
BRELE

Mr. Liu Ka Wing

BREAkE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUIFMITEF

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John
BEALE

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

BEEBEL

Mr. Li Shui Yan

IR EE
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai
and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Cheng Wai Tak,
and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Due to pursuit of his own
personal development, Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai does not
offer himself for re-election and shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In addition, Mr. Tse Ka Wing has been appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. In
accordance with the article 112 of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Tse Ka Wing will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the Listing Date and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than three months’ prior written notice to the other. They
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offered competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Perfect Display Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement as tenant
with Earn Master Limited (“Earn Master”) as landlord to
lease a premise in Hong Kong at an annual rental of
HK$816,000 for a term of 3 years from 1 September
2012 to 31 August 2015. Earn Master was paid a rental
fee of HK$816,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: HK$816,000). Earn Master is wholly owned by the
spouse of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, an Executive Director.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and the
aforementioned transaction, no other contracts of
significance to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 39 to 43 of the annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company: RAEQATRGHERE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity shares held capital
RKAT BT
EEps =7} FEERMEE RABDL
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak Interest in controlled corporation 855,000,000 64.77%
(Note)
BEELE AR ER 855,000,000 64.77%
(B at)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continueqd)

Long positions in shares of associated corporation:

EERFETHRAEREAQFHRE
AEBEZENROREERDRE
SRR ERERRKRRE)

REBEIEROREBROFHER:

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s

Name of associated Number of issued share
Name of Director corporation Capacity shares held capital
HBEEE 1T
BExng B CEE SR 6% FEERGDEE RAEABDL
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak Winful Enterprises Directly beneficially 1 100%
Limited (“Winful owned (Note)
Enterprises”)
EEmEE Winful Enterprises BEEERER 1 100%
Limited ([Winful (Ktit)
Enterprises))
Note: Hiat -

These 855,000,000 shares are held by Winful Enterprises, which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in these 855,000,000
shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «

#% % 855,000,000 0% fi% 1 ©IWinful Enterprises#F 4 * i1 Winful
Enterprises BBV EEL A2 ERE@EAS - At - BEFSH
M EAE GG - B0 12 5t A 4 R AR Winful Enterprises FT#5 B
#) 7% % 855,000,000 Ix i #E S #E 25 -

REXHEEEIN  R-FT-—NOFE+-A=1—
B BFERARAEZITHRABMENARR] K
HAEMBAEEECEE R ESFEBEKRHFEXV
I D HEROREST  BEREES
K EIRPIEXVE BTN BFAHRE  BEHNE
AR MBRAHERSORR (BREREZESFR
HIE RO 80 % SR O B E R B 42
@ ROk R)  WIREE 7 R BB & 0] F352{% AT
MRIE BRSERGOIMENAREECMA
MR IOAR - RIRIFAIER LR RIF5.46
REFELOTIRFMBERETIHHIREMMBEE
MAMEARAMBXAOBRIOKAE



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2014, other than the Director and chief executive of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest or
a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:
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Long position in shares of the Company: RAERBBRODOER
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name Nature of interests shares held capital
AATR BT
=x ERME FEEROEE RAB D
Winful Enterprises Directly beneficially owned 855,000,000 64.77%
(Note)
Winful Enterprises ERERESR 855,000,000 64.77%
(Kt at)
Note: B 5t -

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in these
855,000,000 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 58.4% (2013: 50.7%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 16.2% (2013: 20.5%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 93.6% (2013: 96.0%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately
68.5% (2013: 77.9%). From the Listing Date to 17 June
2014, such largest supplier owned 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION

The material related party transaction in relation to the
rental fee paid to a related party as disclosed in note 30
to the financial statements is continuing connected
transactions exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 20.33(3)(c) of the GEM
Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the section
headed “Connected Transactions — Exempted Continuing
Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus.

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration as disclosed in
note 30 to the financial statements are connected
transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant
to Rule 20.31(6) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that
those material related party transactions disclosed in note
30 to the financial statements did not fall under the
definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had
not entered into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions that are not exempted under Rule
20.71 of the GEM Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S PLACING

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of 330,000,000
new shares (the “Placing”) at the time of the Listing
amounted to approximately HK$76 million, net of
underwriting fees and other related expenses. Details of
the use of proceeds from the Placing are set out on page
21 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

In accordance with Rule 6A19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Grand Vinco Capital Limited
(“Vinco”) as the compliance adviser of the Company. As
notified by Vinco, neither Vinco nor its directors or
employees or associates had any interest in the securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such
securities) as at 31 December 2014.

The compliance adviser’s appointment is for a period
commencing on the Listing Date and ending on the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of the despatch of its
annual report of the financial results for the second full
financial year commencing after the Listing Date, i.e. for
the year ending 31 December 2016, or until the
compliance adviser agreement is terminated, whichever is
earlier. Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement,
Vinco received and will receive fees for acting as the
compliance adviser of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the
Company dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition
Deed”). The Covenantors has provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates have not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors since the effective date of the Non-
Competition Deed and up to the date of this report.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING (Continued)

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 22 to 38 of the annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the
reporting period are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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independent auditor’s report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PERFECT OPTRONICS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 62
to 135, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

BEXXEERATARR
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BRRMLENAIMES - NEHFE P @K
PEEANGFHERMEBMERHRBRAL -

BB ERE

BN EERRERMANBAHAFEREMHT
BRELER  ERBERBRRRSE @ Rtz
AEERNEEBED - R TERARENA
REEMEMALE ERAEEIMEE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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consolidqted statement of financial position

%m S B B5 K iR &

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WmME+=-A=+—8

2014 2013
—E-—NF SEB—==
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB L& 5 3,778 1,537
Intangible assets mEEE 6 3,122 —
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHEE 13 — 57
6,900 1,594
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 7 133,657 131,426
Trade and other receivables JiE WS BR 3k K Ho b fE
W sk 8 108,921 152,459
Tax recoverable A [B] g #5418 2,227 —
Restricted bank deposits ZRHRITFE R 9 22,230 35,038
Cash and cash equivalents RekRaEEY 9 103,314 62,869
370,349 381,792
Total assets BEEHBE 377,249 383,386
EQUITY Ex
Share capital & 7% 11 13,200 —
Reserves k] 12(a) 115,623 37,950
Retained earnings B 17 W = 113,976 100,785
Total equity ERBE 242,799 138,735
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consolidated statement of financial position

e MR E

As at 31 December 2014
RZBE—NME+_A=+—H

2013
—E—=F
Note HK$'000
K1 it FETT
LIABILITIES a8&
Non-current liabilities #ﬁﬁﬁfi
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMSHEE 13 115 —
115 -
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables JE 1F BR 3Rk 2 EL b g
R 14 87,194 159,411
Bank borrowings SRITIER 15 47,141 75,531
Current income tax liabilities EHMSHAsE = 9,709
134,335 244,651
Total liabilities BEHAHE 134,450 244,651
Total equity and liabilities EEzREEHAE 377,249 383,386
Net current assets RBEEFE 236,014 137,141
Total assets less current liabilities EEBRERRBAE 242,914 138,735

The notes on pages 69 to 135 are an integral part of 698 EFIBEMM T RILFLRE M BRKD

these consolidated financial statements.

ARER D ©

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 135 %6253:\:% BENGZaMBHRERER _ﬁ—ﬁ

were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March =A= EH%%AH/E W BE

2015 and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Wai Tak
Director
BEE

o

Liu Ka Wing

Director
BEH
EZ

cEBXNEBMRAT 2014 FIR o
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statement of financial position
Bl 75 A iR &

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WmME+=-A=+—8

2014 2013
—E—-MF =83==
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARIMEE  10(a) 136,082 136,082
Intangible assets mEEE 6 3,122 —
139,204 136,082
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables i B HEK 8 500 4,574
Amounts due from subsidiaries WM BARIFKIE  10(b) 95,348 22,800
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREeEEY 9 5,730 —
101,578 27,374
Total assets EEHAE 240,782 163,456
EQUITY Ex
Share capital & 75 11 13,200 —
Reserves @ E 12(b) 213,882 136,082
Retained earnings B 17 U = 13,330 22,364
Total equity EHEE 240,412 158,446
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statement of financial position

Bl 5% A 3 %

As at 31 December 2014
RZBE—NME+_A=+—H

2013
—E—=%F
Note HK$'000
K1 it FHET
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JiE A~F — R8BS /BB 2 )
Q| 10(b) - 5,010
Other payables H b AR 14 370 —
Total liabilities EEHHE 370 5,010
Total equity and liabilities EzRkEEHEE 240,782 163,456
Net current assets REBEEFHE 101,208 22,364
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBAE 240,412 158,446
The notes on pages 69 to 135 are an integral part of S569H & F 1358 M 7 A L Z B 15 MR A48 B
these financial statements. 7B o

The financial statements on pages 62 to 135 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2015

and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Wai Tak
Director
BEE

o

Liu Ka Wing
Director
BEH
EZ

FE2EEFIBEMMBREEN_ZE—RF=
A-t+thHBESEeHE TRAEEE -
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consolidqted statement of comprehensive income
mezTolNa

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-—NF+-A=+—RLEFE

2013
—E-=F
Note HK$'000
kg FHT
Revenue A 16 1,299,154 1,669,556
Cost of sales 8 & B AR 18 (1,207,137) (1,523,366)
Gross profit EF 92,017 146,190
Other losses, net Hibh BB 58 19 (1,410) (716)
Distribution and selling expenses DN EE R 18 (14,783) (14,713)
General and administrative expenses THHAX 18 (33,775) (40,524)
Operating profit KEFH 42,049 90,237
Finance income B A 22 571 89
Finance costs B &R 22 (2,550) (2,652)
Profit before income tax B AR 18 B A0 AU 8 40,070 87,674
Income tax expense EHE R 23 (7,079) (16,541)
Profit for the year FEFE 32,991 71,133
Other comprehensive income Hit2E W =
Item that may be reclassified subsequently FE1&EA[E# 7 BBz
to profit or loss ZHEH
Currency translation differences SNETE Z R (127) (50)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE X HE W = 4 5 32,864 71,083
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMNEBER:
Equity holders of the Company RATERERFABA 32,991 71,133
Total comprehensive income for the year £EZHWNF A
attributable to: BER:
Equity holders of the Company KARIERFAA 32,864 71,083
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREXRBERA HK2.56 cents HK7.19 cents
25 Al AL

The notes on pages 69 to 135 are an integral part of 5698 & F135B WM T AEHEATHBREDN
these consolidated financial statements HRER S o

Details of proposed final dividend payable to shareholders &~ 72 &) f% 38 #9 #7728 /9 55 15 & R MY
of the Company are set out in note 27. 307 o
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consolidated statement of changes in equitg
2aE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Bz N+ -_A=+—HLFE

BERALAEBEREA
Share Share Other  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings equity
BRA  ROEE HtREE ELRE SEKE EELH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki3 THT FTET THT FTET FTET THT
(Note 11)  (Note 12(a))  (Note 12(a)
(W) (Ba12e) (K izi2a)
Balance at 1 January 2013 —E-=§-R—R&#H = = 38,000 = 59,652 97,652
Profit for the year EEFIH - - - - 71133 71133
Other comprehensive income for the year F & E 2 B = - - (50) - (50)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 2 U 35 8 58 = = S (50) 71,133 71,083
Dividends R 8 27 - - - - (30,000 (30,000)
Total transaction with equity holders, HERBEBEAZRS  BER
recognised directly in equity EREED = = = = (30,000) (30,000
Balance at 31 December 2013 —E-=F+ZA=1+—-8H
itk - - 38,000 (500 100,785 138,735
Balance at 1 January 2014 —mF-A—B&EHB = = 38,000 (50) 100,785 138,735
Profit for the year FEANE = = = = 32,991 32,991
Other comprehensive income for the year F & 2 B - - - (127) - (127)
Total comprehensive income for the year £E 2K &% A% = = = (127) 32,991 32,864
Issue of new shares by way of placing ~ BEBEEXTHKN 3,300 95,700 = = - 99,000
Share issue expenses BRDETHY - (8,000) - - - (8,000)
Capitalisation issue ﬁmt%ﬁ 9,900 (9,900) - - - -
Dividend relating to 2013 paid in R=ZZ-MERARN
May 2014 —E-ZEMRE 27 - - - - (19,800) (19,800)
Total transaction with equity holders, HERBEBEAZRS  HER
recognised directly in equity ERED 13,200 77,800 - - (19,800) 71,200
Balance at 31 December 2014 —Z-mE+=-A=t-H
& 13,200 77,800 38,000 (177) 113,976 242,799
cBENEBIIRNSE o 2014 FiR o
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consolidclted statement of cash flows

moREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-—NF+-A=+—RLEFE

2013
[
Note HK$'000
kg FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNRERE
Net cash generated from operations KEELEMNIR S FE 26 7,441 75,576
Income tax paid BATEH (18,843) (7,120)
Interest paid 2R E (2,550) (2,652)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating &< &8 (FTR),E4
activities FIRE (13,952) 65,804
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BENEE
equipment ) (3,201) (763)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BMER&RE
and equipment B8 28 62 250
Additions of intangible assets NEBEEE 6 (3,122) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HENRA R BEE5
at fair value through profit or loss ABENESREER
BIECT /| = 4,576
Interest received 2 F B 571 89
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing & /&8) (FTA),E4
activities FIRE (5,690) 4,152
Cash flows from financing activities METENRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RATE TSR 277,774 252,177
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (306,164) (239,933)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank ERFIRITFEFRD
deposits (3% 0) 12,808 (4,792)
Proceeds from issue of shares by way of & @BE EHTIRMDTE
placing B 99,000 —
Professional service fees in respect of SHEBRNEENEER
preparation for share placing %% (8,426) (4,574)
Dividends paid B AT AR & (19,800) (60,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing B & EBNEL /(FTA)
activities FIRE 60,192 (57,122)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents R KRESEEYIL N 40,550 12,834
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#IR & MRS EEY
year 62,869 50,101
Exchange loss on cash and cash ReERBFSEEWER
equivalents & 8 (105) (66)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRIEL MIRESZEY 103,314 62,869
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 13 June 2013, as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (as
Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1850, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing”). The
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Winful Enterprises Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading of display panel
and related electronic components.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) and capitalisation of 989,990,000
shares in preparation for the Listing, the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group on 31 December 2013,
the details of which are as set out in the prospectus
issued by the Company dated 24 January 2014 (the
“Prospectus”).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

tm 8 B #5 ¥R 2 B 53
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

£n B Bl 35 ¥R % P 51

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
[t also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

@  New and amended standards, and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards,
and interpretation are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014. The adoption of these
amendments to standards, and
interpretation does not have any
significant impact to the results and
financial position of the Group:

Amendment to Hong Kong Offsetting Financial Assets
Accounting Standard and Financial Liabilities
(“‘HKAS”) 32

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendment

Amendment to HKAS 36  Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

Amendment to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge

Accounting

HK(FRIC) — Int 21 Levies
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards, and
interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendment
to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective and have not
been early adopted. The Group plans to
adopt these new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations when they
become effective.

HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendment

Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements
Project

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendment

HKFRS 11 Amendment

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendment

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee
Contributions'

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle!

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle?

Regulatory Deferral
Accounts?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions

of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Clarification of Acceptable

Methods of
Depreciation and
Amortisation®

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendment

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

HKAS 27 Amendment Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

®)

©

New and amended standards, and
interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2014.

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016.

3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2017.

4 Effective for accounting periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2018.

The Group has not early applied these
new and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the
Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation as from the
Company’s first financial year
commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of expected
impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
So far it has concluded that the impact
is unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Except for the Reorganisation, the Group
applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition
date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated
profit or loss.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

221

222

Consolidation (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Foreign currency translation

@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

@,

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

= income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

— all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of the
improvements term of the leases or
5 years
Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “Other
losses, net” in the consolidated profit or loss.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets
Club membership

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life or intangible assets not ready to use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)

@

(b)

©

Classification (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after
the statement of financial position date.
These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise trade and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

Recognition and measurement

Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)

@)

Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there s
objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)

@

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

@

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement
of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

©

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

210

211

212

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Lease (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor), are
charged to the consolidated profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

213

214

215

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone
item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

215

216

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost: any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the statement of financial position
date.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

217 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

(@  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to
the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Employee benefits

@  Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong. The
schemes are generally funded through
payments to separate trustee-
administered funds, determined by
periodic calculations.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

@)

Pension obligations (Continued)

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to
administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

The Group also contributes on a monthly
basis to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in
the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to
all existing and future retired employees
for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the PRC government.
Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

TEEBRRBMEHE)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 218 EERBH (&)

(b)  Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments
wholly due within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are recognised as a
liability where the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

() Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219

2.20

2.21

Borrowing costs (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities other than those acquired
from business combination are not recognised
but are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors,
who make strategic decisions.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts
that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given by certain subsidiaries to
banks on behalf of fellow subsidiaries to
secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in
the consolidated financial statements at fair
value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised and the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating
to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
profit or loss within general and administrative
expenses.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the respective
shareholders or directors of the group
companies, where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Related parties

@)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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notes to the consolidated f inancial statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Related parties (Continued)

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a); or

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by the senior management of the
Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
United States dollars (“USD”).
Foreign exchange risk primarily
arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the
directors, the Hong Kong dollars
are reasonably stable against the
USD under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, and accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis with respect to
the USD is performed.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from bank borrowings and
deposits.

Borrowings issued at variable
interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings at fixed
interest rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest

3
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rate risk (Continued) B (42 )
The Group’s variable interest rate AEBRZE—NFER=
and fixed interest rate borrowings E—=F+=-A=+—8H
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 VAJE Eh ) 2 K [B] 78 A = 5
are as follows: BHERINT
2014 2013
ik T =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT
Variable interest rate borrowings — LAF 8= 51889
&3 = 17,280
Fixed interest rate borrowings VAR E R R 5HEHY
&= 47,141 58,251
47,141 75,531

Other than short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings, the Group does not
have significant interest-bearing
assets or liabilities. The Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk
associated with the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of the market interest rates on its
cash flows is not deemed to be
substantial in the view of
management based on the nature
of the assets and liabilities.
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RENH B R BEAEE
BWRBILTEK o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, if the
interest rates had been 50 basis-
points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$327,000 (2013: HK$81,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on
short-term bank deposits and bank
deposits, and higher/lower interest
expense on bank borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from trade and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis
with reference to the financial position of
the debtors, past experience and other
factors.

The Group has policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major
customers.

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

©

Credit risk (Continued)

The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables is due for maturity within 60
days and largely comprises amounts
receivable from business customers.
Management does not expect any
significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

About 76% (2013: 63%) of total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2014
were due from the Group’s largest five
customers. No significant collectability
issues have been identified in the past.

Bank balances are deposited in
reputable banks. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance
by these banks.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the date of the statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

3

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

BRI (A

3.1

B ¥ b R = (&)

(b)

©

= & 7 & ()

7R 5 [ K BB 0 e UK B 5K B B B
HAR60EZA T EXZHAE
EWEBEFPHRIA - EEE
BEHRTERELESEF I AET
NREEMEEEAMEKRE

18

RZE—NF+=—A=+—H"
PR BR R ARREXI76% (ZF—=
F:63%) BERAEBRAAR
FRZRE - AATEBRREE
A E -

RITERERRAEEENR
T - BERERPISALER
1T NBAT 15 R & A & £ AR
B8 -

MEE L m R

ZEENRDECARERERE
BRHKERHREREER
5 BARHERZEFEERE
AftER RAENEERE
% B FE A K e

TRINFAEENSRAER
EARMBIR KRB ERK 2]
B B | & 1 i 4% R A0 BE 2 B 48
RIETH DN - ERAWED
THEREHNARBRNA SR
E-ARBANFELIK &
thE12{8 A A I S #R R
REBRE A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Specifically, for bank loans containing a
repayment on demand clause which can
be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretions, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in
which the entity can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect.

Bt Be S ()

3.1

PR ER A

(@

MEE % m k()

ERms  BRNBEREXE
BIGRMARBIGRAIRRITE
EWMBITENRITER &5
ERRBEERARERNRD
Eii,ﬁﬂ A E’]fﬁi//wuuj Bl &%
MR AETTEEZRKARER
B AR AR AR o

Less than
On demand 1 year Total
RER DIR-F #at

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THAETT TAET THET

At 31 December 2014 N-ZT—mE

+-—A=+—H
Bank borrowings |ITIER — 47,141 47,141
Trade payable FE - BR 3K = 72,520 72,520
Other payables E b BT K = 7,885 7,885

= 127,546 127,546

At 31 December 2013 RN-ZE—=

+=-—A=+—8H
Bank borrowings RITERK 9,804 65,727 75,531
Trade payable FE - BR 3K = 137,819 137,819
Other payables E b BT 5K = 12,855 12,855

9,804 216,401 226,205
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKERBERGE
(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXREKBERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital AEBERESHNEZERRELASE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue BRI B E AR EE BN
as a going concern in order to provide returns LA 7 IR R 75 2k (Bl e - [F) B 3k B AL qth
for shareholders and benefits for other FmEEENNE  THEFRED
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal BEREEABEE S KA -
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the AEBERBEEEELRERER -
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as ZhERBEBEBRNEEBER
total debt divided by total assets. Total debt is HE-BERERITBEEERE-
calculated as interest-bearing borrowings.
2013
—E—=
HK$’000
F#& T
Total debt BfEER 47,141 75,531
Total assets BEBRE 377,249 383,386
Debt-to-asset ratio BEEELX 12.5% 19.7%

3.3

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debt.

Fair value estimation

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2014, the Group and the Company did not
have any significant financial assets or financial
liabilities in the statement of financial position
which is measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables and bank
borrowings, approximate their fair values due
to their short maturities.

3.3

RTEFXAFABRENGRE  A&HA
EeRABRXNTRROBRESE
FRREBEEES  BITHRALE
BENABEER -

DN REEME

W=E—=F+-A=+—AR=F
—mE+= A=+ -8 - RUBHR
Kb AKERADRL KRR
AEENEZEASREESSR
Bk

AEBEeRMEECAAEE B8
RekReFEY IRHRTR
B FE R AR R Al R ORI - BA
EASEZzEBEE  BEEMNER
R E AR RRITER - AR
HEMBEEERE  HREEEAA
BEMESE -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in
consumer preferences and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimations by
each date of the statement of financial position
to ensure inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the
jurisdiction in which the Group operates. There
are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions
are applied to trade receivables, where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of trade
receivables requires the use of estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying amount of receivables and the
provision for impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

4 BRGEEETRAEGE)

Fri&®

REBAREEE 2 RAE RN
st - RO S RETEDH
MERERGIFLAEETE - A%
EREHGEFBESRIMNEDS
REFHABRFHENEE -
ZEFENERRKRRBAGRENIR &
VIRENEE  ZFZERTEN
HEBRETHENERARELHRE
MEERAE -

FE Ux B X B9 R B

R &= BIAR 1B FE WORR SR B9 1 5T AT U )
RE B F R RN R E RS -
—BEHELERBERRERRAELR
BE U B 85 SR B - Bl & B AR SR ET
B - B W ERFORES ZF
HfheEt - EEMEBERERTA
DHE RERKEFEZXMAD
35 5 2 i 79 LA K ) R T M BB
EEBREE -
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5

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 5

ME- -BERSRE — X&H

— GROUP
Furniture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
BER
HEBTFRE BLERE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—-A—H
Cost X AR 1,407 611 1,417 3,435
Accumulated depreciation 2ite (1,101) (404) (408) (1,911)
Net book amount EEFE 306 207 1,011 1,524
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_ZT-=%+-H
Z+—BLEE
Opening net book amount FONEEFE 306 207 1,011 1,524
Additions #m 93 214 456 763
Disposals HE = = (337) (337)
Depreciation charge wEIH (145) (88) (196) (429)
Currency translation difference INEHEEE 1 5 10 16
Closing net book amount FREEFE 255 338 944 1,537
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=1+—-H
Cost X AR 1,501 830 1,271 3,602
Accumulated depreciation it e (1,246) (492) (327) (2,065)
Net book amount REFE 255 338 944 1,537
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-MF+=A
=t+—BLEE
Opening net book amount FONEEFE 255 338 944 1,537
Additions 0 299 692 2,210 3,201
Disposals HE (16) - (85) (101)
Depreciation charge wEXH (105) (276) (456) (837)
Currency translation difference INEHEEE @) ®) (12) (22)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 431 746 2,601 3,778
At 31 December 2014 R —MF
+-A=1+—H
Cost BEN 1,419 1,453 3,360 6,232
Accumulated depreciation REE (988) (707) (759) (2,454)
Net book amount EEFE 431 746 2,601 3,778
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BREE — XEEREALQT

COMPANY
Club
memberships
SEs
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—-—=F—H—H
Cost BN -
Accumulated impairment RETRAE -
Net book amount REFE -
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE_T—=F+-A=1T—HIFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE -
Additions # -
Closing net book amount FREEFE -
At 31 December 2013 R-ZEB—=%F+"A=+—H
Cost X AR -
Accumulated impairment RETRIE —
Net book amount REFE -
Year ended 31 December 2014 BHEZZ—NF+-A=1+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE —
Additions N 3,122
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3,122
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE-—HFE+_-_A=+—H
Cost B R 3,122
Accumulated impairment RETRE —
Net book amount REFE 3,122

The Group’s and Company’s intangible assets as at
31 December 2014 represent club memberships
with indefinite useful life, which are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.

AEEBRARFAR-_ZE—OF+-_A=*
—HZEREERRYENRZEMERE
RIE A RAEIREERIE -
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INVENTORIES — GROUP

FE — AKH

2013

—E-=F

HK$'000

FET

Work in progress TR R 36,770 17,105
Finished goods 5E X om 107,517 126,801
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B RETENRE (10,630) (12,480)
133,657 131,426

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “cost of sales” amounted to
HK$1,122,900,000 (2013: HK$1,456,430,000) for the
year (note 18).

The Group credited to the consolidated profit or loss
an amount of HK$1,850,000 (2013: charged an
amount of HK$12,480,000) in respect of the net
amount of the reversal of provision for obsolete
inventories, loss on obsolete inventories and write-
down of inventories to their net realisable value for
the year. These amounts have been included in the
cost of sales in the consolidated profit or loss.

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «
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8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 8 EWEZEKEMEWT — &

GROUP AND COMPANY B & 42 7]
Group Company
rEH NN

2014 2013 2014 2013

=F PLEN - = S ==
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
rex kRl T¢r BT

Trade receivables (Note (b)) JiE WS BR 3k

(K1 &% (b)) 54,016 51,271 — —
Bills receivables (Note (b)) R,
(%15 (b)) 52,840 95,470 — —
106,856 146,741 — —
Prepayments, deposits, and A e
other receivables N E fth pE
W 3k 2,065 1,144 500 =

Deferred professional service & & &R/
fees in respect of preparation & HIE L &
for share placing (Note (d)) ¥R ER

(K172 (@) - 4,574 — 4,574
108,921 152,459 500 4,574
Notes: Wit -
(@) The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate (@) FERERAREMERRORA A BEELERD
their carrying amounts. BRE -
(b) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 120 days. (b) AEBE—RELHIOE0RANEEN - BER
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on ZHHFENRERUERREBRNERER TN
invoice dates is as follows: S8

2014 2013

—E-NF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHT

1-30 days 1-30K 67,014 132,013
31-60 days 31-60K 26,500 14,151
61-90 days 61-90K 6,981 574
91-180 days 91-180% 6,361 3
106,856 146,741

cBxHhEERAD c20FHR « 107



108

notes to the consolidated financial statements

£n B Bl 35 ¥R % P 51

= =%
8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — 8 EWRAKRHEMEKRR — K&
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) RARQNT)(E
(© As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade receivables of (©) RZZE—WF+_A=+—B A&EEEaH
HK$3,073,000 (2013: HK$7,120,000) were past due but not 1B AR Rk (B 79 FE U iR 305 3,073,000 L (=2 —
impaired. These trade receivables relate to a number of =4 :7120,000/8 L) - ZZEM IR R E S HE
independent customers for whom there is no significant BEAVBRENBIEFPER  REBEK
financial difficulty and based on past experience, the 5 ZE@AFRBETYKE -
overdue amounts can be recovered.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were past due DB R R ENERESINERSTOT
but not impaired is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-—NFE —2—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Amounts past due 10 B SR I8
1-30 days 1-30K 1,530 7117
31-60 days 31-60K 1,476 3
61-90 days 61-90K 27 —
91-180 days 91-180K 40 —
3,073 7,120
@) The balance represents legal and other professional fees @ BHRSBEEBARRRERMDZEEREM

relating to the placing of the Company’s shares. Such fees
has been deducted from equity upon the listing of the
shares of the Company on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 7 February 2014.
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RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS —
GROUP AND COMPANY

BERRESEYUARZRHIE

TR — ARERALT

Group
#

2014
—g-ps
HK$’000
T

2013
—ET—=%F

HK$'000
FAET

2014

S
HK$’000
T8

Total bank deposits, bank

RITFHR R

Company

2NN

2013

—E—=F

HK$'000
THET

balances and cash 1THEE R NIR
AR 125,544 97,907 5,730 —
Restricted bank deposits AARBEE
included in current assets 7 PR 1 98
TR (22,230) (35,038) — -
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBEEE
B 103,314 62,869 5,730 —
Note: gz
(@) As at 31 December 2014, bank deposits of HK$22,230,000 (@) RZE-—OFE+-_A=+—H ' RITER

(2013: HK$35,038,000) were secured for the Group’s

borrowings (note 15).

22,230,000/ 7T (ZF— =4 : 35,038,000 7T)

FA 1R 7 5% (B 48 3R A9 3 4R (P 3E15) -

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 10 RHMBARMNBRER EW (FE
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) B ARRE — XQF
SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (@ RHEBATNWRKRE
2014 2013
bkl —F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT T
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD -
KA 136,082 136,082
CEHENBERAD o 2004 FER o
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10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 10 RHMIBARIMNKRER EUW (FE

= = % =
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) MMBLARTKIE — A2F
e —
SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (&
(Continued)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@ RHBARANKRE(E
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 RZE-—MOF+A=1+—HB8HE
December 2014: NEFHIAT
Proportion of Proportion of
Place of Particulars of ordinary shares ordinary shares
incorporation and Principal activities and issued share capital/  directly held by the held by the
Name kind of legal entity place of operation registered capital Company (%) Group (%)
AR BERITRH/ ARFAEERERZ AEEBEL
A% EEERER TEEBRBELY BEMBRAFE EBRLHI(%) B R (%)
Rightone Resources Limited  BVI, limited liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
(“Rightone”) company at no par value
Rightone Resources Limited ~EBREL#S REER 10,0008 & R E 18 100% 100%
([Rightone]) BRAA )
Shinwa Technology Limited BVI, limited liability Holding of patents 1 ordinary share at no = 100%
company par value
HERRBERRA ABRAHEBERAR BEEF 1R E L AR = 100%
Sinosky Resources Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100%
company par value
Sinosky Resources Limited ~ EBRLZESHEBAR REER 1REEELER = 100%
Dexing Investment Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100%
company par value
Dexing Investment Limited RERAHEERLR REZR IREEELAR = 100%
Yuan Tai Investment Limited ~ Samoa, limited liability ~ Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of - 100%
company USD1 each
BaREBERAA BEETERAF REZR 100 B REEIET = 100%
B
Perfect Display Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading of display panel 38,000,000 ordinary - 100%
liability company and related electronic shares
components in Hong
Kong
BXBRERAR BRAERAR REEHERTERRA 38,000,000 % & & = 100%
WEFHH
Perfect Sky Technology Hong Kong, limited Electronic product 1 ordinary share - 100%
Limited liability company application development
in Hong Kong
BERABBEERRAA ERERRA REBETEFERER 1REAK - 100%
GES

110 * Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 e
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 10
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)

SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(Continued)

(@)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

&8

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
AMRIBHER
ERERERR

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEERREE N

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

RBARINRER BK, (&
MHBLRRKRIE — AT
(&)

@ RHERXANKREA

Proportion of Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary shares ordinary shares

Dexing Technology
Development Limited

BANKERERRDAF

Yuan Mei Xin Technology
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

ExERR(RINERAT

Yuan Tian Technology
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

BRMBECRINBERAE

Yuan Tai Electronics Company

Limited

EaEfRHAERRDE

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERERAR

The PRC, limited
liability company

TEERRE

The PRC, limited
liability company

FEERRE

Taiwan, limited liability
company

ARARAT

Not yet commenced
business

AAREH

Wholesaling, import and
export of display panel
and related electronic
components and
provision of technical
support and related
services in the PRC

EHENEERER IR
BEFHHOSE
OREO - ARRAHE
7% & RAA IR %

Research and
development, provision
of technical support and
related services in the
PRC

B R B B R R A AR AT %
& AR R

Not yet commenced
business

AAREH

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are

denominated

in Hong Kong dollars,

unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable

on demand.

issued share capital/  directly held by the held by the
registered capital Company (%) Group (%)
BRITRS,/ ARAEEEAR rEEBELZ
EaRAFE B B Bl (%) BB R BI(%)
1 ordinary share - 100%
1R 8 R - 100%
USD500,000 - 100%
500,000% 7. - 100%
USD100,000 - 100%
100,000% 7T - 100%
500,000 ordinary = 100%

shares of TWD10

each
500,000/ & i 18 - 100%

ABI0THERR

(o) FEW (FEAT)H B D B 7R

ZIEW (P BB A R FRIA TH LA
TEHE FHcBEAERER 28
RIZBEREE -

cEBXNTERANT 2014 FI
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11 SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND 11 BE — AEEREAAQF
COMPANY
Ordinary
Number of shares of
shares HK$0.01 each
BREBER
i 4= 0.01% T
'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Authorised: ZEE
At 1 January 2013 W_EZ—=%—H—H = =
Incorporation of the Company on KRR ZE—=F
13 June 2013 NA+T=BrMKT 39,000 390
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F+=A
1 January 2014 =t+—BE-ZT—MNF
—H—H 39,000 390
Increase in authorised capital pursuant Ri&E —F —PUF— A
to written resolutions of the sole “tHEM—RERBAZ
shareholder of the Company on R RIE A E R
20 January 2014 4,961,000 49,610
At 31 December 2014 RZT—HE
+=-—A=+—H 5,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=%F—HF—H = =
Issue of shares BTG 10 —
At 31 December 2013 and R—_E—=%F+=A
1 January 2014 =T BRk=T—WF
—HA—H 10 =
Issue of shares by way of placing — & BE ST 0
Note (a) — Wit(a) 330,000 3,300
Capitalisation issue — Note (b) BRI IT— Kt b 989,990 9,900
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+=A
== 1,320,000 13,200
Notes: Bt a7 :
(@ Public listing (@ 2FMLtm

On 7 February 2014, the Company has
allotted and issued 330,000,000 shares at the
offer price of HK$0.30 per share raising gross
proceeds of approximately HK$99 million.
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11 SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Capitalisation of share capital

On 7 February 2014, 989,990,000 shares were
issued by way of capitalisation of share
premium on the proceeds from the allotment
of 330,000,000 shares stated in note (a) under
the capitalisation issue as detailed in the
Prospectus.

11

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

BAE — XEBRAQE(HF

(b) BREEZRE

R-ZE—M4E = A+H » 989,990,000
BERHOEBREBBRERAFLNE
AL B 178 T MY 3 () AT Al A9 B 3%
330,000,000% % 17 &9 A7 13 50 18 /9 %
DimBEREMmELT -

12 RESERVES — GROUP AND 12 f&fe — 2RERERF
COMPANY
(a) Group @ *%E
Share Other Exchange
premium reserve reserve Total
BROBRE HtiEE ELREE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET TER
(Note)
(H#t:2)
At 1 January 2013 RW—Z—=%—HfF—H — 38,000 — 38,000
Currency translation difference M & = 48 = = (50) (50)
At 31 December 2013 and R-_ZE—=F+=-A
1 January 2014 =t+—BR
—T-HmE—-H—H — 38,000 (50) 37,950
Issue of shares by way of FREEEITRMD
placing (Note 11(a)) (Bt &t 11(@) 95,700 = — 95700
Share issue expenses BHEEITHR (8,000) = = (8,000)
Capitalisation issue (Note 11(b) & A&{t3%17
(B &t 116)) (9,900) = —  (9,900)
Currency translation difference E¥EH =& - - (127) (127)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—Mm4F
+=—A=+—8 77,800 38,000 (177) 115,623
Note: Hiat -

Other reserve represents the difference between the share
capital issued by the Company for acquisition of the
subsidiaries pursuant to a reorganisation for the Listing and
the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being acquired at
the time of the Reorganisation.

HipEERAARRE EmETEMAMETR
RN BB A B RN E AR KA E R
AMEERZEZR -
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12 RESERVES — GROUP AND 12 B — XEBRARQTE(E)
COMPANY (Continued)

() Company () &2

Share Contributed

premium surplus Total
RGOBE HBARK w|E

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
THET THET TAET

(Note)
(K7 7%)
At 1 January 2013 RIZE—=
Arising from Reorganisation EHEESE = 136,082 136,082
At 31 December 2013 and RZT—=%F
1 January 2014 +=—A=+—H
&:E usges
—RA— — 136,082 136,082
Issue of shares by way of placing  #EBEEZEITM
(Note 11(a)) (B aF11(8) 95,700 — 95,700
Share issue expenses f& BT X (8,000) = (8,000)
Capitalisation issue (Note 11(b)) BEAR(LEETT
(B zE11(b) (9,900) — (9,900)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZT— I7_f|¢
— A= 77,800 136,082 213,882
Note: By et
Contributed surplus of the Company represents the RATNHA BB ASBHARRBEITROE
difference between the excess of the nominal value of the EReERREEEAMKENEARNEEE
Company’s shares issued and the aggregate net asset FEZER -

value at the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Reorganisation.
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

13 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 13
(LIABILITIES)/ASSETS — GROUP

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities and
deferred income tax assets is as follows:

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

BEEFREH(BE)EE — &
£H

S A 719 0 2 (8 O A T4 B A ) 547
mF

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
FAETT

Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets: BIEFTBH(BE),/

BE:

— to be settled after more — BR12E AN

than 12 months (51) -
— to be (settled)/realised within — BR12@ AR (R,

12 months Y 8] (64) 57
(115) 57

The movements in deferred income tax (liabilities)/
assets in respect of (accelerated)/decelerated tax
depreciation during the year are as follows:

z

LRFARE(NR),BRBIRETER RN
BT P

EFEH(RE) EEZHNT:

2013

—E—=F

HK$'000

FHE T

Beginning of the year F 9] 57 ©)
(Charged)/credited to profit or (ng) FAER

loss (Note 23) (H1723) (172) 59

End of the year FR (115) 57

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$634,000 (2013: HK$672,000) in respect of
losses amounting to HK$2,537,000 (2013:
HK$2,690,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income, if any, for the next five years.

BEFTEHMEETAERBRGSF R E
BARRERHAFNER ML EE2RIE
R R_T—NE+-_A=+—8"
REBW AR B AT AR R AF LKA K
FERBIUA (20F) 2 E5182,537,00048 7T (=
T — =4 : 2,690,000/ Jr) it R IE 1T FT 15
i & E 634,000 7T (ZF — =4F : 672,000
S TT) °

cEBXNEBMRAT 2014 FIR o
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14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES —

GROUP AND COMPANY

14 BERAREMEENR — A&

BRARDT

Group
A%E

2014

—T-mE

HK$’000
TER

2013

—= =

— =

HK$'000

THAET

Company

LSS
2014
—EF-IF
HK$’000

FER

2013

HK$'000
THET

Trade payable (Note (b)) FE S BR 3K
(K17 b)) 72,520 137,819 — —
Deposits received from WHREFZ®
customers 6,747 8,737 e e
Accruals and other payables &t Z0IE & H
fth JE 15 5% 7,927 6,916 370 -
Accrued professional service Bt FEH ¥
fees in respect of the Listing IR & A = 5,939 = =
87,194 159,411 370 —
Notes: B st :
(@) The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their (@) ERAEREEMENROAABEEELER
carrying amounts. BEIRE o
(o)  The ageing analysis of trade payable based on invoice dates (b) REEFRAPEORNERRRER D70
is as follows: T:
2014 2013
—T-nmF —F—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T
1-30 days 1-30% 46,341 106,322
31-60 days 31-60K 19,653 31,481
61-90 days 61-90K 6,525 =
91-180 days 91-180% 1 16
72,520 137,819
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15 BANK BORROWINGS — GROUP 15 RITER — XK H

2013

—E-=F

HK$'000

FET

Bank advances for factored receivables RIEBEBREIRITE R 31,541 58,251

Short-term bank loans HAERITER 15,600 -
Portion of long-term bank loans due for AR —FABENREAR

repayment within one year TEFREH - 7,476
Portion of long-term bank loans due for AR—FRERBHAR
repayment after one year which contain ZREZBRFIHRAR

repayment on demand clauses TER = 9,804

47,141 75,531

As at 31 December 2014, the Group factored trade
receivables of approximately HK$31,541,000 (2013:
HK$58,251,000) to a bank. As the Group still
retained risks and rewards associated with the
default and delay in payment by the debtors, the
proceeds from the factoring of these trade
receivables have been accounted for as the Group’s
liabilities and included in “Bank advances for
factored receivables”.

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the
bank loans repayable on demand, are carried at
amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings
amounting to HK$8,800,000 were drawn under the
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (the “Scheme”)
launched by The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited. The balance was fully settled on 7 January
2014.

Except for bank borrowing amounting to
HK$8,800,000 as at 31 December 2013 drawn
under the Scheme, none of the portion of bank
loans due for repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand clause and that is
classified as a current liability is expected to be
settled within one year.

R-ZE—MNE+-A=+—H KEEK
JE Ug BR FX 4931,541,0008 T (Z T — =4 :
58,251,000/ L) X —RWITIRIE - AR
EEMRBEBEFALR KIEIRIE KD
B @S A0 B R BRI A% S5 e U BR ER Y B
SRECIEAERNERE - WAtARE
JEWGRAERITRRIET -

AERTTERERERREREENRITHE
B mEBHEKAANRK -

R-ZE—=%F+"A=+—0 " RITEX
8,800,000 LR IEB B IZIBESFBR A
AP/ N R EERETE (T8
Bl ZABREN_ZE—NF—A+HE2%2
HEEE -

BRRZZE—=F+-A=+—HKRTHE
7£8,800,000/8 7Lik 7% =t 8|12 ERSD - BEE/A
R—FREZEFERBRKEZGRRIRE
BRARBEENRITERIMDAERENR —
FARBE -

cBXNXEBMRNANT 2014 Fik o
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15 BANK BORROWINGS — GROUP

(Continued)

The scheduled repayment date of the Group’s bank
borrowings, as set out in the loan agreements and
without considering the effect of any repayment on
demand clauses were as follows. The analysis below
also represents the Group’s exposure to interest rate
changes on borrowing at the contractual repricing
dates.

notes to the consolidated financial statements

£n B Bl 35 ¥R % P 51

15

RITER — *2KEAE

EXRBAEMBATNERIZEREERRE
ENASBRITERNIEZERRTM
T ATAOMTRRAEER S ANEN
EEBMHGERMNEBHORRE

2013
—ET—=F
HK$'000
F&TT

1R
1E22F R
2E5F A

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

47,141 65,727
- 5,204
— 4,600

47,141 75,631

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
borrowings approximate their fair values.

During the year, the bank borrowings were secured
by:

(i) bank deposits of HK$22,230,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$35,038,000) (note
9); and

(i)  corporate guarantees provided by the
Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain loan covenants imposed by the
banks.

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «
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T
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35,038,000 7t) (F13%9) &
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

16 REVENUE

17

Revenue represents the sales of display panel and
related electronic components to external parties.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the directors of the Company. The
directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources
and have determined the operating segments based
on these reports.

The directors consider the Group’s business from a
product perspective and determine that the Group
has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) Unprocessed thin film transistor liquid crystal
display panels (“TFT-LCD panels”) and other
unprocessed products

(i) Processed TFT-LCD panels

(i)  Integrated circuits

(iv)  Polarisers

The directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and gross profit of each segment and do not

assess the performance based on segment assets
and liabilities.

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

16 W A

17

RALFEHA -
7 EEH
ERGERRERERAATNES - &

EEHAEENAMBREAFERAERD
BRER YREZSHEECKEDH -

EENEMARRAAKENER  UE
EAEEHBATOERRELEDE:

i) ARENTEEERBREABETRE
R ([TFT-LCDME R J) & EAth R & 0 T
E

(i) EZIMITFT-LCDME R

(i) KB

(iv)  RIIR

BEEERS D BHWAREFN 2T

REDBHRE > MIEERDBLEEREA
AEFHERE -

cBXNXEBMRNANT 2014 Fik o
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17 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 17

(a)  The segment information provided to the
directors for the reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is
as follows:

Unprocessed TFT-LCD
panels and other
unprocessed products
KEMITFT-LCDAR
REMGREMIER

2013 2014 2013
—F-=%
HK$'000

TET

Processed TFT-LCD
panels

EMITFT-LCDAR

HK$'000
TREL

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TER

Integrated circuits

CZ-MF it

Segment revenue (all from AR (2 EE

7 BEF (&)
(@) ATRRHTEFBRE_T-NFR

—E-—=F+-_A=+—HItFEA
WEDIAHER:

Polarisers Total

xR a5t

2013 2014 2013

F EEEE - T—-=F m BN —=F

HKS000" ELEH VO HKS'000 I SO HKS 000" JECX
TiEn Ryl THET EEREYAE TiEr EERRV

external customers) BSMNBEFE) 330,646 867237 689515 525338 249,616 238766 29,377 38215 1,299,154 1,669,556
Cost of sales HERK (312,565) (785,863) (625742) (466,515) (240,494) (235,319)  (28,336)  (35,669) (1,207,187) (1,523,366)
Gross profit ES 1 18,081 81374 63773 58823 9,122 3,447 1,041 2546 92,017 146,190
Gross profit margin EF% 5.5% 9.4% 9.2% 11.2% 37% 1.4% 3.5% 6.7% 7.1% 8.8%

Unallocated operating costs & 7 Bt &4 ik &
Finance costs, net HEBREA

B A S BRI

Profit before income tax

(49968) (55959
(1979 (2569)

40,070 87,674

(b) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical
location

During the year, most of the Group’s revenues
were derived in Hong Kong, where the Group’s

b) REFHEMEZHIND HRA

TR AEERBLIBAGKER
B ARETREEATFPRMNEE

products were delivered by the Group to its ah ©
customers.
2014 2013
—ZE—-F —F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong BB 1,266,030 1,659,230
The PRC A 33,124 10,326
1,299,154 1,669,556

120
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17 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

©

Revenues from major customers who have
individually contributed to 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group are disclosed as
follows:

17

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

o EER (&)
© RAXBEF (BHAREBYEAI0%
HIA L) HIRA BN :

2014 2013

—E-NE —FT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHE T
Customer A EPA 257,413 341,952
Customer B EFB 204,270 233,808
Customer C (i) EFEC () 156,463 142,033
618,146 717,793

(i) Revenue from Customer C contributes less than
10% of the total revenue of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The three customers are included in the
unprocessed TFT-LCD panels and other
unprocessed products, processed TFT-LCD
panels, integrated circuits and polarisers
segments.

) RBE-F-=FT-ASt-ALF
B BECREREKA LK EE B
AT RE10% °

ZoAEPEARE N TTFT-LCDE

WMEEMARENIES  SHITFT-
LCDE R « £ BERR IR D I -

cEBXNTERANT 2014 FI
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17 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 17 2 &R (4&)

(d)  An analysis of the Group’s non-current segment d) AEEFERBOBEETEERL
assets (other than deferred income tax assets) FriSMEE)REEMTEME DTN
by location of assets is as follows: T
Hong Kong The PRC Total
BB H et

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
THET THET THET

As at 31 December 2014 RZE—MNE
+-—A=+—8
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 2,344 1,434 3,778
Intangible assets mEEE 2,000 1,122 3,122
4,344 2,556 6,900
As at 31 December 2013 RZT—=
+—A=+—8
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BERZHE 852 685 1,537
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&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included cost of sales, distribution and

18 BREEESTHER

seling expenses and general and administrative X BRASTHOT:

expenses are analysed as follows:

FPABERA  DHEMHER XA RITR

2014 2013
= plEN _—T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHE T
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKRAR 1,122,900 1,456,430
Processing and sub-contracting expenses Jl T X 98 & A 73,624 46,413
Transportation expenses EHER 5,572 7,499
(Reversal of provision)/provision for (BO&E), REFE
obsolete inventories (Note 7) B A7) (1,850) 12,480
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EAD B & 1,480 1,280
Employee benefit expenses (Note 20) 1B Bf& A A (K 7220) 27,855 19,365
Depreciation of property, plant and M- - BMELREHETE
equipment 837 429
Operating lease rentals in respect of EFLEHERS
buildings 8,509 4,375
Professional service fees in respect of TR EXRBER
the Listing 1,084 13,426
OTHER LOSSES, NET 19 HiEEF
2014 2013
= ks _—E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T
Net exchange loss b 5 18 F 5 (665)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEE - MERZEN
equipment B8 (39) (87)
Loss on financial assets at fair value UNAanfBEGETAER
through profit or loss MEmEENEIE = (17)
Others H 43 53
(1,410) (716)
CEEHREERAD - 2006 FH o
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20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 20 EERAMAX

The employee benefit expenses, including directors’ EBERAAEL BRERESHFWINEDOT:
remuneration, is as follows:

2014 2013
—EZ-MF —E—=

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Short-term employee benefits (Note) EEHEBEN (A F) 26,661 18,879
Post-employment benefits & B Rk 1E A

— defined contribution plans — EEEREE 1,194 486

27,855 19,365

Note: Short-term employee benefits represent salary, wages, Hat - RHEBERIEINEENTS  TERIEL -

bonus paid to employees, staff quarter expense and EIFRBAUKEBIRRIENRERSE -

insurance premium for staff insurance schemes.
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21 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 21 EEFMREBESH AL

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ remuneration () EE¥H M
Salary, Retirement
allowances benefit-defined
and benefits  Discretionary contribution
Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
RAKER
H4 2R - &8
e ENER MEEAL R E @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FTET FTET TET TET
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT-W&+=A
=t-ALtEE
Executive directors: HITEF -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chief Executive) BRERE(TRAH)

(“Mr. Cheng”) (T84 = 4,896 350 17 5,263
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai BRELE = 360 = 17 377
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BERELE - 618 300 17 935
Independent non-executive directors: BUAHITEE:

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John HEBEE 108 = = = 108
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu EEHAE 108 — — - 108
Mr. Li Shui Yan FHBEE 108 = = - 108
324 5,874 650 51 6,899
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE2-T—=F+=8
=t+—-HIEEE
Executive directors: HITEF -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chief Executive) HEEEE(THAER) = 4,727 990 15 5,732
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai BRERE = 323 = 14 337
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BERELE = 617 345 15 977
- 5,667 1,335 44 7,046

MEEENFARRAREREL
e (—E—=F:8)-

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2013: Nil).

—Z-NE—A-_+H EELE
£ EBEBAERTHEBLEEHYE
EEBARRNBIYIERITES - B
BE-ZT—=F+-_A=1+—HLF
B BYIFNTEST RAEZTRK
BIEABUIERITESTNESTMHE o

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu
and Mr. Li Shui Yan were appointed as the
Company’s independent non-executive
directors on 20 January 2014. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the independent
non-executive directors have not yet been
appointed and received no directors’
remuneration in the capacity of independent
non-executive directors.

cEBENTERAD c20ER o 12H
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21 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 21 EEFMRIEBEERSHAL
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (#&)
(Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b)) EEEEHFAL
The five individuals whose remuneration were BE-_T—mME+-_A=+—HIIF
the highest in the Group include two directors EAEBALZSESEMALTEER
(2013: two) for the year ended 31 December CEE(CE—=F ML) EEH
2014 whose remuneration are reflected in the RHMR EXFEHOITEE o
analysis presented above.
Information relating to the remuneration of the BEEHFMO SRR E210)%RE -
directors has been disclosed in note 21(a). ERNBTIEEES ST A 0B
Details of the remunerations of the remaining SEEHTIMT
highest paid non-director individuals during the
year are set out below:
2013
—T—=F
HK$'000
FHT
Short-term employee benefits REEERT 4,337 3,202
Post-employment benefits & BRIK1E A
— defined contribution plans — EEMH RS 40 23
4,377 3,225

The number of highest paid non-director
individuals whose remunerations for the year
fell within the following bands:

REEHMN FATHENFEES
BEHBMALHAZNT :

Emolument band: B < &6 [
Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

£ 21,000,000/ 7T
1,000,001/ 7T %1,500,0007% 7T 1 2
1,600,001 JT %2,000,0007% 7T

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no
remuneration (2013: Nil) were paid by the
Group to a director or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office, and no arrangement under which a
director or the five highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any of the
remuneration.
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FINANCE COSTS, NET 22 B ERFH
2013
—F—=
HK$'000
FAT
Finance income B WA
Interest income on pledged bank EHEFRITERA SR A
deposits 515 80
Interest income on bank deposits RITF A B U A 56 9
571 89
Finance costs B %8 A
Interest expense on: LTEBEREGFERX:
Bank advances from factored RIBEBRHRITRR
receivables (707) (723)
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ARAFREHEBN
within five years RITIER (251) (497)
Factoring charges REEHR (1,592) (1,432)
(2,550) (2,652)
Finance costs, net MBERTE (1,979) (2,563)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 23 FiIBMEH

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman
Islands, the BVI and Taiwan during the year (2013:
Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit during the year arising in or derived from Hong
Kong. The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
subject to PRC corporate income tax at a standard
rate of 256%. No PRC corporate income tax has
been provided as the Group has available tax losses
to offset the assessable profit generated during the
year (2013: Nil).

AEERAFEBRABMHASES  REB
BREEREGERA(CTE—=F:£)-

EANESH IR AEEERBEEIR
B & BN G ERE A B IR E16.5% (=
T—=F :16.5%) T2l - REFEEF
BHMBAREMMTECEMER 2
EE R - ARNAEEHBAIBAH
BEBUNEEATFEEEANERBFE
WMBERFRCEMSHITREBERGE S
—=FE)o

cEBXNEBMRAT 2014 FIR o
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FREBERE)

REEBEEPNBENAEHEEE:

23 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 23

The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated profit or loss represents:

2014 2013
TENE -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current income tax EHIEH

Hong Kong profits tax BEBENGER 6,907 16,600
Deferred income tax (Note 13) EEFTE (M aF13) 172 (59)
7,079 16,541

AR ER B BLER P 1S BB AR FE B0 PR IS B A
ERASEMBERNHEMEENERS
BEMER  ARWMT:

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the tax rate applicable to the Group as

follows:
2014 2013
= ks —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT F#E T
Profit before income tax bk BT 15 B B A1) 40,070 87,674
Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate 1% & i | 18§ 51 £16.5%
of 16.5% ATEMMIE 6,612 14,466
Effect of different taxation rate in other Hihm A E TR EL
jurisdictions e 13 (228)
Tax losses for which no deferred income — ZEMERIELFTEREEN
tax asset was recognised TIAE 18 56 672
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) F 5T B I 48 R R 9 B 7S
recognised B8 (94) —
Income not subject to tax EEHRABA 9 M
Expenses not deductible for taxation TAMERNH AL ER
purposes 501 1,632
Income tax expense Fristi & A 7,079 16,541
Effective tax rate BERE X 17.7% 18.9%
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 24 BEAERRTAERRHEANRE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders HEe2-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLEFE"
of the Company for the year ended 31 December GERARFEEEBANGAFEER
2014 is dealt with in the financial statements of the AR B R R i 1R ) 3R 310,765,000
Company to the extent of HK$10,765,000 (2013: BT (ZT—=% 22,364,000 7T)
HK$22,364,000).
EARNINGS PER SHARE 25 BRER
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing BRERBFDIRARFERITEAEN
the profit attributable to equity holders of the FEBRFRNRIECTTZBERNEFIE
Company by the weighted average number of FTE o
ordinary shares deemed to be in issue during the
year.
In determining the weighted average number of ETHEZE_T—NER_Z—=+ZH
ordinary shares deemed to be in issue during the =T —RLEFEREEBITERRN INE
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the FHEE  BHE-_E—=Ft+-A=1+—
10,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 B I € B %17 210,000 & % T {50.01
each issued during the year ended 31 December BT EREBIERENMCBETREAA
2013 and the 989,990,000 shares with par value of 711) 821T7HY989,990,000 % & % I {H0.01/%8
HK$0.01 each issued upon the capitalisation issue TTHROEFSIERNZEROHE T —
and Reorganisation (note 1) have been regarded as —F—HA—HB%17 -
if these shares were in issue since 1 January 2013.
2013
=

Profit attributable to equity holders A ERFEA

of the Company (HK$'000) FEAG R B (F& ) 32,991 71,133
Weighted average number of ordinary B 377 /Y X 58 A% o0 #E

shares in issue (thousands) 39 B (F AR 1,286,548 990,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share EREARAREERF

(HK cents per share) (B2 i EANL) 2.56 719

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amount for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 as the Group had no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
these years.

HRASERBEEZE_T—NFR-_T—=
Frt-_A=t - BLFEAEFEMDET
BEBELTRE WUERZEFEZ)
NEREABFELAE -
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26 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED 26 EBREREXRME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash BRATGHAA ERCEEEANIRS FHY
generated from operations: iR
2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FAET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 5 B A1) 40,070 87,674
Depreciation on property, plant and V- BMELREETE
equipment 837 429
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMELZEN
equipment J=agi=] 39 87
Loss on financial assets at fair value WARBETETAEBER
through profit or loss MEMEEMNEIE = 17
Finance income B 75 U A (671) (89)
Finance costs MBER 2,550 2,652

Operating profit before changes in working &8 & & # &gl & 78

capital 42,925 90,770
Changes in working capital EBEETED
— Inventories - GFE (2,231) (2,833)
— Trade and other receivables — FEURER R R H A fE
WK 38,964 (24,593)
— Amounts due from related companies  — & U B B A 7] 28 = 8,758
— Amount due to a shareholder — B —2RERIE = 8,783
— Trade and other payables — BERRREAM
FESF 3R (72,217) 6,550
— Amount due to a related company — EN—REEB AR
RIE = (11,859)
Net cash generated from operations KEEEMNIR e FR 7,441 75,576
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DIVIDENDS 27

&n 8 B % ¥R % P 51

=)

2014 2013
b —T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAT

Interim dividends declared and paid by a AEBEH—XKEAFE

subsidiary of the Group (Note (a)) R AR ERE
(Hi# @) — 30,000
Final dividend proposed by the Company of ANAFE# 2 KEKE —
HKO0.5 cent (2013: HK1.5 cents) per %@ AR0.578 L
ordinary share (Note (b)) (ZZE—=F 1.5%)
(B 7 (b)) 6,600 19,800
6,600 49,800
Notes: B 57 -
(@) Interim dividends for 2013 were declared by a subsidiary of (@) BEHIAEEN —RANBRARIMEERESS
the Group before the Reorganisation to its then equity EAERN_-_ZS—=FENFHARE -
holder.

(b) Final dividends for 2014 and 2013 were proposed by the
directors of the Company to the shareholders of the
Company. The amounts of proposed final dividends for
2014 and 2013 were based on 1,320,000,000 shares in
issue as at 25 March 2015 and 24 March 2014.

COMMITMENTS 28

Operating lease commitments

The Group acts as lessee under operating leases.
The Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of buildings
as follows:

(b) AAREERHEMARARABRRER=-ZT—NF
MZZE—=FHREAKRSE - ZT—NHFR=Z
—=FEMNBRERARSSBIRER=_ZE—H
FZAZ+RBAERZZTE-—WOF=A=-+WHEE
%47 #91,320,000,000 0% A% 19 i & 7 °

iR
SRR
AREREEBEENERY - RBETH

THRMEREHEE AEENRKINR
BRESHIWOT :

2014 2013
e T =

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Within 1 year 15 A 5,489 4,660
Later than 1 year and not later than 15 18 R6F A

5 years 866 775

6,355 5,435

These leases typically run for an initial period of one
to three years.

ZEMENNEHEBE - RS —E=F -
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29

30

Bl §% ¥R % B 53

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has
provided corporate guarantees to certain banks to
secure the banking facilities of its subsidiaries (2013:
Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(a)  The directors of the Company are of the view
that the following companies that had
transactions or balances with the Group are
related parties:

Name

=%

29

30

HAEE

R-BE-—NE+-_A=+—8 A&£HEL
BERIABEZEZE—=F:8)-

R-T-mE+=A=+—0 FAFAEE
HATERTETRIT  FAEMBLR
ZRITMEZER(CE—Z4: 1)
BRELR S

W= A EREEER S A H 5
—TEHPBREERREFEEATE
AT RE REED - X HKRES
SAREATEENBREES -

(a) ARAEZEERE UTREAEARE
BHETRIATELEHNREES:

Relationship with the Group
BREAEENEE

Velog International Limited
Velog International Limited

J-Sky International Limited
J-Sky International Limited

Earn Master Limited
Earn Master Limited

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014 «

A related company controlled by Mr. Cheng
F 88t A 4% 1 1 R g R W)

A related company controlled by Mr. Cheng
B B8 % A 4 | ) B Bt 8 R

A related company wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Cheng
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEAIRZ (&)
(Continued)
(b)  Transactions with related parties (b) HBEEFNXS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related companies during the
year.

Continuing related party transactions:

BRREVBRRAEREN  KE
EFEANRBARARETATRS -

FEAET XS

2014 2013
—E-—MmEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Rental expense paid to % ftEarn Master Limited
Earn Master Limited Gokicksarba 816 816
Discontinued related party transactions: FIFEHELT RS -

2014 2013
BN —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T
Sales of goods to M J-Sky International
J-Sky International Limited Limited 34 & & f = 1,573
Purchase of goods from [ Velog International
Velog International Limited Limited i § & @ = 315

In the opinion of the directors, these
transactions were entered into in the normal
course of business at mutually agreed prices
and terms.

() Balances with related companies (c)
As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no

balance with the related companies mentioned
in note 30(a) above (2013: Nil).

EERR ZERGIREFERB
TR IR B 77 1 E MY (B A8 S AR ARET 3L ©

BB DR AR
R-Z-—OFE+-_A=t—H &&

& £8 - 32 fft 5730(a) FT it 2 8 Bk 1 )
WEmAER(CE—=F &)

cEBXNTERANT 2014 FI

133



134

notes to the consolidated financial statements

i #% ¥R % B 53

miﬁCl.g.

oY=

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BERRZ (&)
(Continued)
(d) Key management compensation (d FEEEASHMH
Key management includes directors and senior FEERAEBREESRaRERE
management. The compensation paid or o MIEE IR H MRS AT E
payable to key management for employee NEZEBABNFMEOT:
services is shown below:
2013
—E—=
HK$'000
FHE T
Short-term employee benefits REEERF 8,402 9,549
Post-employment benefits & BRIKIE A
— defined contribution plans — TEMH RS 67 74
8,469 9,623

Included in key management compensation
was compensation paid or payable to the
spouse of Mr. Cheng, amounted to
HK$191,000 during the year ended 31
December 2013.

Personal guarantee from Mr. Cheng

As at 31 December 2013, the bank borrowings
of the Group secured by the personal
guarantee from Mr. Cheng amounted to
HK$75,531,000. Such personal guarantee was
released upon the listing of the shares of the
Company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 7 February 2014,

e Perfect Optronics Limited ¢ annual report 2014

FTEEEABEFMNEREHEZE-_Z—=
F+-_A=+—BHItFEENSHER
B 5 A /Y BL 45 A Fr B191,00078 7T ©

BreR#z@/AER

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H8 &%
B2 RITERASBELERE ZEA
R B & 5 A/75531,00008
T o ZERAERREARGTRZE—
UE— AEBREBER AT ET & ERRR o
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The following significant events took place
subsequent to 31 December 2014:

(@)

Proposed Acquisition of Perfect Shiny
Technology Limited

On 22 January 2015, Rightone, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a conditional agreement with Mr. Cheng, a
director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, pursuant to which Mr. Cheng
agreed to sell, and Rightone agreed to
purchase, the entire issued shares of Perfect
Shiny Technology Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Cheng. The consideration in the
sum of HK$323,000,000 will be satisfied upon
completion as to HK$293,000,000 by Rightone
procuring the allotment and issue of
163,687,151 consideration shares of the
Company, credited as fully paid, to Mr. Cheng
(or to his nomineeg), as to HK$20,000,000 by
the issuing and delivering of a promissory note
by Rightone in favour of Mr. Cheng and as to
HK$10,000,000 in cash. As at the date of
approval of these financial statements, the
aforementioned transaction is pending for the
approval by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming extraordinary
general meeting.

Investment in Mobvoi Inc.

On 29 January 2015, Everon Resources
Limited (“Everon”) (@ company wholly-owned by
Mr. Cheng), Skyteam Resources Limited
(“Skyteam”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Mobvoi Inc., among others,
entered into a preferred share purchase
agreement (“Preferred Share Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which each of Everon
and Skyteam conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 25,213,220 series A-2 preferred shares in
Mobvoi Inc. (“Series A-2 Preferred Shares”) for
a consideration of US$3,000,000. Following
the closing of the issue and subscription of the
Series A-2 Preferred Shares on 30 January
2015, Everon and Skyteam each owns
approximately 2.5% of the share capital (on a
fully diluted and as-converted basis) of Mobvoi
Inc., which through its subsidiaries is engaged
in the business of developing and providing
voice search systems on mobile, smart
wearable, and other devices in the PRC.

31
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HERRSEE

THEAREFER-_T—NF+_A=1+—
Higsa:

(@)

ERWBEEHNRERAT

R-Z—FHF—HF-+=-H  Rightone
(KRB Zz 2 EH B AR]) EE A (K
NRE BRI ER)FT LB H
FOBUH BEERELEM
Rightone B E B EE M EHEBRAF
2HEBITRGD > ZRFEBLESR
& %A - X E & 323,000,000
TR KRR B % H &
293,000,000/% 7T # H Rightone 1& f&
AN 7 BE B N B 17163,687, 151 (B
B (AR ABHHR) FTEBLE
(HERB A)ZH AKX
20,000,0007% 7t # B Rightone LA Zf 4
EERETRTEEALEZEBRZ AR
3 1+ 510,000,000 JT LAIR & 1+ o
Rt EEMERERAE A3
BEHEARABIRERENGRITZ
BRI R G HE A o

# & A Mobvoi Inc.

R-ZZE—FAF—HA=-1+B Everon
Resources Limited ( [Everon] ) (%55
2 BEHAB2AT) Skyteam
Resources Limited ( [Skyteam] ) (&
NElZ 2 EHEAR]) EMobvoi Inc.5&
AIMNEEREE R ([BEEREBER
#1) ¥ EveronNSkyteam& B 45
&R = REE25,213,220fMobvoi
Inc. A-2Z3IEB5 ([A-2RFEL
f% 1) - K{E%A3,000,000F L - A=-F
—AF—A=tHERETRREBA2K
HI{E 5 f%1% - Everon X Skyteami& &8
#ABMobvoi Inc.892.5% 2 xR (2
HE#FNBEHEAE) - Mobvoi Inc.iE
BEMNBARNPRNEAERIEHTF
o EREMENREREMREZES
BWERRGES-
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financial summary
g

For the year ended 31 December
BE+=-RA=+—-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011
kN T = —T-——f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TR TEL FET

Results B
Revenue WA 1,299,154 1,669,556 1,382,583 1,627,122
Profit for the year attributable to AAFIERFEA
equity holders of the Company FEAE S AE 32,991 71,133 35,193 33,999
Dividends & 2 6,600 49,800 58,000 18,000
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2014 2013 2012 2011
= b —T—=F —T-——-f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAxT FHET FAxT
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERSE 377,249 383,386 347,107 337,648
Total liabilities BEAE (134,450)  (244,651)  (249,455) (217,189)
Total equity s 242,799 138,735 97,652 120,459
Note: B =

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

No financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 have been published.

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 were extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 24
January 2014.

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2014 and

2013 were extracted from the Company’s published audited financial
statements.
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